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INFORMATION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report on Form 10-K contains certaimvfard-looking statements and information relating to ®empany and its subsidiaries that
based on the beliefs of the Company’s managememekhsas assumptions made by and information culyeavailable to the Company’'managemer
When used in this report, the words “anticipate iélieve,” “expect,” “estimate,” “project” and “intend” and words or phrases of similar import,
they relate to the Company or its subsidiaries ompany management, are intended to identify ford@ao#ling statements. Such statements refle
current risks, uncertainties and assumptions relate certain factors, including without limitationsompetitive factors, general economic conditi
customer relations, relationships with vendors, ggowmental regulation and supervision, seasonatltgtribution networks, product introductions &
acceptance, technological change, changes in imgyshctices, onetime events and other factors rilesd herein. Based upon changing conditi
should any one or more of these risks or unceigninaterialize, or should any underlying assumm#iprove incorrect, actual results may v
materially from those described herein as antiagohtbelieved, estimated, expected or intended Chinepany does not intend to update these forward
looking statements.

PART I
ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Sharps Compliance Corp. was formed in November #3892 Delaware corporation. The information preshierein is for Sharps Compliance C
and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Sharps Compbannc. of Texas (dba Sharps Compliance, Inc.)rf&ha-Tools.com, Inc. (“Sharps e-Togls”
Sharps Manufacturing, Inc., Sharps EnvironmentalviSes, Inc. (dba Sharps Environmental ServicesTexas, Inc.) and Sharps Safety,
(collectively, “Sharps” or the “Company”). Unledset context otherwise requires, “Compagny“we , " “us” and “our” refer to Sharps Complian
Corp. and its subsidiaries.

The Company provides access to all of its filingthwhe Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEBfugh its website www.sharpsinc.cqras
soon as reasonably practicable after the reports fded with the SEC. The filings are also avai@ablia the SEG website ¢
www.sec.gov/edgar/searchedgar/companysearch.html .

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Sharps Compliance Corp. is a leading &dlvice national provider of comprehensive wasteagament services including medical, pharmace!
and hazardous. Our solutions facilitate the propatection, containment, transportation and treatimgf numerous types of healthcasdatec
materials, including hypodermic needles, lancets atier devices or objects used to puncture ordéedhe skin, or sharps, hazardous waste
unused consumer dispensed medications and ovectider drugs. We serve customers in multiple ntarlgach as home health care, retail cli
and immunizing pharmacies, pharmaceutical manufexu professional offices (physicians, dentistd @eterinarians), assisted living and |aegr
care facilities (assisted living, continuing cdosg-term acute care, memory care and skilled nursgm)ernment (federal, state and local), consur
commercial and agriculture, as well as distributramany of the aforementioned markets. We assistcastomers in determining which of -
solution offerings best fit their needs for theledlion, containment, return transportation anattreent of medical waste, used healthcare mate
pharmaceutical waste, hazardous waste and unuspendied medications. Our differentiated approactiigees our customers the flexibility to ret
and properly treat medical waste, used healthcatenmls or unused dispensed medications througdriaty of solutions and products transpo
primarily through the United States Postal Ser¢itéSPS”). For customers with facilities or locations that nggnerate larger quantities of waste
integrate the routbased pickup service into our complete offeringe Tenefits of this comprehensive offering includiegle point of contac
consolidated billing, integrated manifest and probfdestruction repository in addition to our ceswings. Furthermore, we provide compreher
tracking and reporting tools that enable our cusiento meet complex medical, pharmaceutical andrdans waste disposal and complie
requirements. We believe the fuilytegrated nature of our operations is a key faletading to our success and continued recurringme® growth. W
continue to take advantage of the many opportunitieall markets served as we educate the markee@nd as prospective customers become
aware of alternatives to traditional methods opdsal (i.e., route-based pickup services).
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As a leading fullservice national provider of comprehensive wastaagament services including medical, pharmaceutindl hazardous, our k
markets include pharmaceutical manufacturers, hbewthcare providers, assisted living/lalegm care, retail pharmacies and clinics anc
professional market, which is comprised of physisiadentists and veterinary practices. The Compafiggship product, the SharfisRecover
System, is a comprehensive solution for the comtaint, transportation, treatment and tracking of ic@dvaste and used healthcare material
October 2014, the Company launched MedSafa patent pending solution for the safe collecttoamsportation and proper disposal of unwantec
expired prescription medications including congdllsubstances from ultimate users. MedSdfas been designed to meet or exceed the
regulations issued by the Drug Enforcement Admiatiiin (“DEA”) implementing the Secure and RespblesDrug Disposal Act of 2010 (the “Agt”
which became effective October 9, 2014.

Our principal executive offices are located at 9R2®y Drive, Suite 500, Houston, Texas. Our télepe number at that location is (713) 4800
We currently have 74 full-time employees and 1 {iarte employee. We have manufacturing, assemblyrilalision and warehousing operatis
located on Reed Road in Houston, Texas and ouocat offices located on Kirby Drive in Houston,x@s. We own and operate a fupgrmittec
treatment facility in Carthage, Texas that incogtes our processing and treatment operations. Appately four years ago, we supplementec
treatment facility’s existing incineration procesgh an autoclave system, which is a ceffective alternative to traditional incineratiomat treat
medical waste with steam at high temperature aedsprre to kill pathogens. The autoclave systentilizad alongside the incinerator for day-day
operations. We believe that our facility is oneoofy ten permitted commercial facilities in the td States capable of treating all types of me
waste, used healthcare materials and unused aredxgispensed medications (i.e., both incineratioth autoclave capabilities). The Company uti
six treatment facilities owned by subcontractorghef Company which are located across the couatrihe proper treatment of medical waste and
healthcare materials generated by certain of ostoooers. This arrangement not only reduces the @ogpreturn transportation costs associated
its Solutions but also provides back-up treatmaailify capabilities in the event of disruptionthé Companys treatment facility in Carthage, Texas
July 2015, the Company acquired a route-based piskwice in Pennsylvania, which serves Pennsydydnaryland, and parts of Ohio.

SOLUTIONS OVERVIEW

We offer a broad line of product and service sohgito manage the medical waste and unused disperestications generated by our customers
primary solutions include the following:

Sharps Recovery System™ (formerly Sharps Disposal by Majsten® ) : a comprehensive solution for the containment, partation, treatme
and tracking of medical waste and used health weterials generated outside the hospital and laegéth care facility setting. The Sharps Reco
System includes a securely sealed, leak and punotgistant sharps container in several sizesngrfghm one quart to twenty-eight gallons; USPS-
approved shipping box with prepaid priority mailsgege; absorbent material inside the containerdaiatsafely hold up to 150 milliliters of fluids
bag for additional containment and complete docuatem and tracking manifest. The Sharps Recovestedn is transported to our ownec
contracted facilities for treatment. Upon treatmantonversion of the waste, we provide electrgmaof of receipt and treatment documentation t
customer through our proprietary SharpsTr&cgystem. We introduced new systems this year t@Gtiaps Recovery System brand portfolio tha
best suited for facilities with multiple treatmenbms. These new systems offer multiple sharpsagoeits with a single return, prepaid return box.

TakeAway Medication Recovery System™ comprehensive solution that facilitates the prafigposal of unused medications (including coifed
substances) from ultimate users. The solution leas lblesigned to meet or exceed the new reguldeued by the DEA implementing the Act, wF
became effective October 9, 2014. The solutioresighed for use in long-term care (on behalf o thatient), hospice and consumer markets.

MedSafe® : a patentpending solution for the safe collection, transgiion and proper disposal of unwanted and expiresgquiption medication
including controlled substances from ultimate usktsdSafe has been designed to meet or exceeatheagulations issued by DEA implementing
Act, which became effective October 9, 2014. MedSafdesigned for use in retail pharmacies, Itarg: care facilities, hospice, hospitals/clinicsh
on-site pharmacies, narcotic treatment facilitied Bcensed law enforcement.

Route-Based Pickup Serviceas a full-service waste management services compangffer routebased medical and hazardous waste pickup se
to customers and prospects that have facilitidganches that generate larger quantities of medichdzardous waste or where the rdusised picku
service is preferred. This blended service of naaikband pickup provides cos&vings benefits by customizing the right solutigth each location 1
reach the best outcome for the customer.

ComplianceTRACSM : a more advanced web-based version of the Compaoeymliance and training programComplianceTRAC is designed
improve worker safety while satisfying applicabledQpational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHAnd other requirements for the eunser
The program includes employee training for Blooditgopathogens, HH8empliant HIPAA and Hazardous Communications. Théne program als
provides access to a database of over a millionsSMSDSs), safety plans, regulatory information &amdlity self-audits. The program is designet
replace outdated hard copy manuals with an upgagfbrm available 24/7.
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Universal Waste Shipback Systene:jointly-promoted program with Veolia Environmeng&ervices using their RECYCLEPAKSsolutions for th
collection, transportation and recycling of lightllbs, batteries and other mercugntaining devices. The solution is marketed tosting ani
prospective customers as a complement to the Coytyplame of medical waste and unused medicationagament solutions.

Other Solutions: a wide variety of other solutions including TakeAwnvironmental Return System™, SharpsTrateiSharps Securg Needle
Disposal System™, Complete Needle™ Collection &pdial System, Pitch-It IV™ Poles, Trip LesSystefh, Sharps® Pump and Asset Rett
System, SharpsMWMS™ (a Medical Waste Management System (“MWMSiid Biohazard Spill Clean-up Kit and Recovery Syste

MARKET OVERVIEW

The Company continues to focus on core marketssahdion offerings that fuel growth. Markets senaed professional offices, retail pharmacies
clinics, assisted living and lortgrm care facilities, home healthcare, governmginérmaceutical manufacturers and other commercigmzation
that require cost-effective services for managirglical, pharmaceutical and hazardous waste.

The Company believes its growth opportunities aggpsrted by the following:

« A large professional market that consists of déstigeterinarians, clinics, private practice phigis, urgent care facilities, ambulat
surgical centers and others such as acupuncturéatind services. This regulated market consistsmdll to medium quantity generator:
medical, pharmaceutical and hazardous waste whereaw offer a lower cost to service with solutibtmsnatch individual facility needs. T
Company addresses this market from two directi¢ipgield sales which focuses on largdoHlar and nationwide opportunities where we
integrate the routbased pickup service along with our mailback sohdito create a comprehensive medical waste mamagefiering an
(i) inside and online sales which focus on thevittial or small group professional office

« The shift of healthcare from traditional settingstlie retail pharmacy and clinic markets, where Gloenpany focuses on driving increa
promotion of the Sharps Recovery System. The nurabél.S. retail clinics is projected to increasgndiicantly, as much as 2026% pe
year, driven by the increasing demand of newly iedipatients under healthcare reform, as well &enga looking for more convenient ¢
and retail pharmacies increasing the variety arldme of healthcare services they provide. Accordimghe Centers for Disease Con
("CDC"), 25% of flu shots for adults were administ in a retail clinic with the trend expectedrorease. In addition to the continued grc
in the flu shot business, there are also growthodppities for more primary care in the retail dleenative site setting and correspondir
growth opportunities for the Company based onigaiicant presence in the retail market. A recstudy shows that Americans visit re
clinics 10 million times a year, which represemty@®% of "all primary care patient encountei

« The passage of new regulations for ultimate useaticagon disposal allows the Company to offer nelons (MedSafe and TakeAw
Medication Recovery System envelopes) that meetebalations for ultimate user controlled substandisposal (Schedules W} to retai
pharmacies. Additionally, with the new regulatiotiee Company is able to provide the MedSafe ana:Aalay Medication Recovery Syste
to assisted living and hospice to address a lagdgtg issue within lor-term care

« The changing demographics of the U.S. populatione- out of five Americans will be 65 years or oltdgr2030, which will increase the ne
for cost-effective medical waste management saisti@specially in the longgrm care and home healthcare markets. With malsplution
for managing regulated healthcare-related waste Obmpany delivers value as a single-source providgl blended mailback and route-
based pickup services matched to on the waste wswheach facility

« Local, state and federal agencies have growingsnémdsolutions to manage medical and pharmacdutiaate— the Company's Shar
Recovery System is ideal for aseded disposal of sharps and other small quantfienedical waste generated within governmentdingls
schools and communities. The Company also proviligseAway Medication Recovery System envelopes areti34fe solutions
government agencies in need of proper and regylataimpliant medication dispos:i
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« With an increased number of <injectable medication treatments and local regofesti the Company believes its flagship productSharp
Recovery System, continues to offer the best ogtomproper sharps disposal at an affordable pii¢e Company delivers premium servi
to pharmaceutical manufacturers that sell highadplselfinjectable medications, which include data managgmeompliance reportin
fulfillment, proper containment with disposal, bdémg and conformity with applicable regulations.dddition, the Company provides self-
injectors with online and retail purchase optiorissbarps mailback systems, such as the Sharp Rec@yestem and Complete Nee
Collection & Disposal System, respective

« A heightened interest by many commercial compawies are looking to improve workplace safety witlopper sharps disposal and unt
medication disposal solutions the Company offers a variety of services to meesé¢hneeds, including the Sharps Secure Needle $2i
System, Sharps Recovery System, Biohazard Spal&id TakeAway Medication Recovery System envelc

« In July 2015, the Company augmented its networkneflical and hazardous waste service providers aitlacquisition of a rou-basel
pickup service in the northeast serving PennsybdjaMiaryland and parts of Ohio. Additionally, therm@many has begun to service part
Texas and Louisiana with route-based pickup serW¢ith the addition of these roubased pickup regions and the network of medica
hazardous waste service providers servicing thieeedtS., the Company offers customers a blendedumt portfolio to effectively mana
multi-site and multisized locations, including those that generateclaggiantities of waste. The network has had a fegnit positive impac
on our pipeline of sales opportunities ever 60% of this pipeline is attributable to oppwoities providing comprehensive waste manage
service offerings where both the mailback and picgervice are integrated into the offeri

« The Company has new solution offerings that incluttenate user medication disposal (MedSafe andeBAakay Medication Recove
System) and mailback services for DEA registramired inventory of controlled substances (TakeAwésdication Recovery System DI
Reverse Distribution for Registrant

« The Company's strong financial position with a chalance of $15.2 million and no debt as of June28@5.

TERMINATED CONTRACT AND LEGAL SETTLEMENT

On January 29, 2009, the Company entered intoegyBar contract with the United States Departmenteitrans Affairs National Acquisition Cen
(“VA NAC") to provide its Sharps MWMS, a rapideployment solution designed to provide medicaltevasllection, storage and treatment in
event of natural disasters, pandemics, mmate disasters or other national emergencies ipostipf the CDC Division of Strategic National Stpde.
Sharps MWMS also incorporated warehousing, invgnteanagement, training, data and other servicesssacy to provide a comprehensive solu
Sharps performed under the contract through Jar@Br2012. On June 30, 2014, the Company entereajeement to settle its claims agains
United States government and various agenciestketatthe January 2012 termination of the Compafgbruary 2009 contract with the CDC.
settlement agreement resulted in a cash paymehit.6fmillion, which was received by the Companyuty 2014.

COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS
We believe our competitive strengths include tHi#ang:

Leading full-service national provider of comprehensive and effective waste management services, including roaklipharmaceutical, an
hazardous.

We offer a full line of solutions and services tlaaldress the proper management of medical wasted, hesalthcare materials and patient dispe
unused or expired medications (including controbedstances). We offer a blended product portfiiad includes both a mailback and robtese:
pickup service to target prospective customers withiti-site and multisized locations that may include facilities thahgmte larger quantities
waste, including medical, pharmaceutical and hamesd This blended offering includes a single paihtcontact, consolidated billing, regulat
support and complete integration of our SharpsTragstem. Our proprietary SharpsTracer tracking @oclmentation systems provide custom
comprehensive electronic record of receipt andtrireat of their waste to meet regulatory requiremeihe Company’s mail or shigack base
services are generally offered at a significarglyér cost as compared to the traditional rdassed pickup services for small quantity generagiors
the Company utilizes the existing infrastructurdJ8PS or in some cases United Parcel Service (“YRBreturn transportation. While competit
may attempt to replicate our comprehensive solubiberings, we believe the ability to offer suclt@mprehensive, valuadded turnkey solution is
significant competitive advantage. We have onlgureto offer this comprehensive solution over tastghree years with the primary focus of
marketing efforts on educating the marketplace tibewas an alternative to the historical providewaste services, including medical, pharmacet
and hazardous.
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Vertically-integrated full-service operations.

Our operations are fully integrated, including mfacturing, assembly, distribution, treatment, oalimacking and customer reporting. We
manufacturing, assembly, distribution and warehmygperations in Houston, Texas. We own and opeaafigly-permitted treatment facility
Carthage, Texas, that incorporates our processidgtr@atment operations. Approximately five yeage,ave supplemented the treatment facitity’
existing incineration process with an autoclavetesys which is a costffective alternative to traditional incineratiomat treats medical waste w
steam at high temperature and pressure to killogehs. The autoclave system is utilized alongdi@eincinerator for day-tday operations. W
believe that our facility is one of only ten pera@t commercial facilities in the United States d¢dpaof treating all types of medical waste, L
healthcare materials and unused or expired medigatincluding controlled substances (i.e., bothnm@tion and autoclave capabilities).
Company, under an agreement with several subcaotsaaitilizes six treatment facilities located@ss the country for the proper treatment of me
waste and used healthcare materials generatedriyustomers. This has not only reduced the Comgamgglrn transportation costs but also proy
back-up treatment facility capabilities in the etvehdisruption at the Compars/treatment facility in Carthage, Texas. We trdmk ovement of ea
shipment from outbound shipping to ultimate treattrend provide confirmation to the customer foritliecords using our proprietary SharpsTr:
tracking and documentation system. We also tragktitnent volumes associated with pickup servicegiged as part of our blended product portf
using SharpsTracer. We also provide customizedrtiegoand comprehensive regulatory support for mafngur customers. By controlling all aspe
of the process internally, the Company is ablertviple a one-stop solution and simplify the tragkand recordkeeping processes to meet regule
requirements for our customers. We believe thg{fnllegrated nature of our operations is seen byeatiand prospective customers as a key factc
differentiator leading to our success and leadprgbsition in our industry.

Diverse product markets
Sharps offers services and products to a wide tyagieend markets. The Compasygrowth strategies are focused on retail pharmaaiel clinics
pharmaceutical manufacturers, home healthcare geosji assisted living/longerm care facilities and the professional marketictv is comprised

physicians, dentists and veterinary practices. \Ide aerve federal, state and local government agerand hospitality, which includes hot
commercial, industrial and agriculture.

Our billings by market for the years ended June2Bd5, 2014 and 2013 are below (as expressed @emtages of revenues):

Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013
BILLINGS BY MARKET:

Retail 28% 24% 24%
Home Health Car 22% 27% 32%
Professiona 20% 20% 18%
Pharmaceutical Manufactur 15% 14% 11%
Assisted Living 6% 6% 7%
Governmen 5% 2% 3%
Environmenta 1% 3% 1%
Other 3% 4% 4%

10(% 10(% 10(%

Highly scalable business mode

Because of our proven business model, we can addoosiness while leveraging our existing infrastuoe. Our facilities are able to accommo
significant additional volume, incurring only vabla costs of transportation and processing. Oncgaue a new customer, our profitability typice
increases as our customer base grows without additoverhead expense due to the embedded natote pfoducts and the ease with which we
accommodate additional volume.
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Increased state and federal regulatory attentic

To protect citizens and waste workers from neetk snjuries, nine states have passed legislatiomegulations making it illegal to discard u
sharps into household trash. Another nine statdstlam District of Columbia have strict guidelinegarding home sharps disposal. Passed or
guidelines related to home sharps disposal cové¥s df the U.S. population. In addition to stateniegons on disposal of homgenerated sharps
consumers, several counties have passed ordinesmpaising businesses that sell syringes to theipuslich as retail pharmacies and veterinary o
to take back those syringes, once used, in regylatampliant sharps containers at no charge t@dmsumer.

In order to reduce accidental poisonings and gohuof our water and municipal water systems, tyedwno states and the District of Columbia h
introduced legislation over the last few years ndied to manage the disposal of consumer unusedcatiedis. Seven states and the Distric
Columbia have successfully passed such legislaBassed or pending legislation related to dispoSabnsumer medications covers 67% of the
population. Further, since 2009, the federal gowvemmt, nine states and several counties have irmtssbueqgislation requiring manufactu
responsibility for consumer generated unused médita State regulatory agencies are also addigedbis issue within the regulated indus
Multiple states now require healthcare providersvoid sewer and trash disposal of f@mzardous unused medications within their facditiState
such as California, Washington and Minnesota hageired assessment and proper treatment by a rhediste disposal company for years. Howe
other states such as Colorado and Florida are equining even small healthcare providers to sedeegaused medications for proper disposa
addition, states are beginning to more closelytBime generators returning through reverse distiitm unused medications that are actually v
pharmaceuticals and should be disposed of as #sc$tate and federal enforcement of these statutesases, more companies could turn to solu
such as ours to help manage their medical wasteegndatory compliance. We believe we are well iased to benefit given our strict adherenc
established standards and extensive documentattreaords.

Environmentally-conscious solution provider.

In addition to providing costffective solutions for our customers, the Compiargommitted to discovering new sustainable iriited that mitigate tf
effects of potentially hazardous waste on the emvirent. Our patented Waste Conversion Protespurposes regulated medical waste and ur
medications into new resources used in industgplieations, such as the generation of electrigityecycled plastics used in the industrial sec@an
Universal Waste Shipback Program recycles the adgen light bulbs, batteries, and other mercooyrtaining devices for use in new application:
addition, the use of recycled paper and plasticerieds for many of our products further demonstsater total commitment to environmentally so
business practices. As an organization, the Comgmayleading proponent for the development of tsahs for the safe disposal of sharps, un
medications (including controlled substances),tlighlbs, batteries and other mercwgntaining devices in the community and continualtyrks tc
raise public awareness of the issue.

Experienced and accomplished management te

Our senior management team has extensive indugpgrience and is committed to the continued groavtti success of our company. Mr. Davi
Tusa, CEO and President, in addition to hispgkrs- years with the Company has over 20 years sihbss and public company experience in mu
industries and in companies with revenues up t@$&0lion. Mr. Brandon L. Beaver, Senior Vice Pt of Sales, has broad healthcare sale
sales management experience with the Company aad/atiety of firms including AIMS/Allied Care, &itd party administrator and managed
company. Ms. Diana P. Diaz, CPA, MBA, Vice Presidand Chief Financial Officer, has over 25 yeardimdince, accounting, healthcare and pt
company industry experience. Mr. Gregory C. DaVisg President of Operations, has over 20 yeaisfofmation technology and operatioredatec
experience. Mr. Khairan Aladwani, Vice PresidentAaisurance/Quality Control, has over 25 years dliuassurance and operations experie
including medical devices, at a variety of comparbeth private and public. Mr. Dennis Halliganc¥iPresident of Marketing, has broad marke
experience with the Company and at a variety afsirincluding Stir Creative and R.J. Reynolds.

The Companys Board of Directors oversees CEO and senior managiesuccession planning. The process focuses itingumanagement dep
considers continuity and stability within the Compand responds to Sharps’ evolving needs and ahguegcumstances.

GROWTH STRATEGIES
We plan to grow our business by employing the feitg primary growth strategies:
Further penetrate existing customers and markets.

Many of our customers who currently use the Sh&gsovery System could also benefit from the TakeAMadication Recovery System, Meds
our hazardous waste solutions, our universal wastations or other specialized products. Althoughrently focused primarily on the pro|
management of used syringes and needles as welhessed medications (including controlled substangasarmacies (including chains and r
order), assisted living facilities and other retaterganizations will develop needs for our othevdurct lines as they expand their patient se
offerings. As an entrenched and value-added supgliigeatment solutions, we believe the Companye#i-positioned to capture incremental busit
from our existing customers.
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Over the past three years, the Company has devklpetwork of medical and hazardous waste seprigeiders including those with routese:
pickup services, which allows the Company to seéheeentire U.S. medical and hazardous waste markduly 2015, the Company augmentes
network of medical and hazardous waste serviceigeos with an acquisition of a roub&sed pickup service in the northeast serving Bérarga
Maryland, and parts of Ohio. Additionally, the Cammy has begun to service parts of Texas and Laasidth routebased pickup service. With 1
addition of these routbased pickup regions and the network of medical flamhrdous waste service providers serving theeebtiS., the Compa
offers clients a blended product portfolio to effeely target current and prospective customers witilti-site and multsized locations including thc
that generate larger quantities of medical and fdlmzs waste. The offering includes a single pofntantact, consolidated billing, regulatory sup
and complete integration of our SharpsTracer systéra Company believes the comprehensive offeritigcantinue to assist the Company in lanc
larger opportunities whereby the customer has laotife and small quantity facilities generating ncatiivaste, used healthcare materials and hazz
waste.

We are positive about anticipated growth opportesiin the Retail market. Regarding the futureto$ tmarket, a recently published reportec
Accenture cites that the number of U.S. retailictirare projected to increase significantly, as imas 20%25% per year, driven by the increas
demand of newly insured patients under healthogfieam as well as patients looking for more convehigare and retail pharmacies increasing
variety and volume of healthcare services they ipvAccording to the CDC, 22% of flu shots for Bslwvere administered in a retail clinic with
trend expected to increase. In addition to theinaet growth in the flu shot business, there ase gfowth opportunities for more primary care ie
retail or alternative site setting and correspoglfiigrowth opportunities for the Company basedtsrsignificant presence in the retail market. Aere
study shows that Americans visit retail clinicsrllion times a year, which represents only 2% alf primary care patient encounters.”

Since June 30, 2011, the Company experienced grofratmost sixteen times or $4.6 million in the phaceutical market. We continue to see int
in our patient support program solution offeringceng pharmaceutical manufacturers as it relate®lfeirgectable medications especially relate
new drug launches. We believe manufacturers are mmse than ever, focused on (i) product differidin, (i) improved interaction with patients ¢
(i) creating a touch point for individual patiefdllow-up that could lead to improved therapy outcomedisical year 2012, we launched three

patient support programs announced in August aridld@c 2011. In fiscal year 2015, we launched tladgitional patient support programs and ex
to launch two more patient support programs for dewg therapies over fiscal year 2016. The pasapport programs include the direct fulfillmen
the Sharps Recovery System to the pharmaceuticalfaeturers’program participants, which provides the propertaioment, return and treatmen
the needles or injection devices utilized in thgrépharps’proprietary SharpsTracer system tracks the retéitheo Sharps Recovery System by
patient to the treatment facility and then makeailaple to the pharmaceutical manufacturer elearaoiata. This data assists them in monitc
medication discipline and provides them with a topoint for individual patient followp, which potentially could lead to better outcom&e believ:
the Company is the leader in providing solutionthi type to this market.

Enhance sales and marketing effort

Field Sales- The Company maintains a field sales team that &xos larger dollar and nationwide opportunitiesniost of the markets served. -
field sales team is able to address much largeortyppities where we can integrate the roodésed pickup service along with our mailback sohgitc
create a comprehensive waste management offerimgh&Ve seen success with this approach in fisalsy2013 through 2015 and believe
comprehensive offering capabilities will contingesiccelerate revenue growth of the Company.

Web and Inside Sales— Through targeted telemarketing initiatives (irsghles), e-commerce driven website and beted promotional activitie

we believe we can drive significant additional gtovas we increase awareness of the Compaimyiovative solution offerings with a focus
individual or small group professional offices.
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Improve product and service awareness to attracivrmistomers

As we grow, we continue to focus additional mankgtand sales efforts designed to educate professidfices, retail pharmacies and clinics, ass
living and long-term care facilities, home healtiggaggovernment, pharmaceutical manufacturers amer a@ommercial organizations that require cost-
effective services for managing medical, pharmacaufnd hazardous waste of the benefits of ountiewl offerings and the need for safe, cost-
effective and environmentally-friendly methods ddiste treatment, including medical, pharmaceutaad, hazardous. We believe that the &dfvice
nature of our solution offerings, ease of our mail shipback based delivery system and convenience wiiethew customers who are not yet a

of the services we provide. In addition to provglia convenient, cogtffective solution to waste and used healthcareenadsé treatment, we belie
future growth will be driven by the need for ourstamers to properly document and track the dispafstileir waste to maintain compliance with r
and existing legislation. We believe our undersiagdf the legislative process and focus on aceueatd thorough electronic tracking of wi
disposal or treatment will provide substantial Hgésdo new customers looking to comply with newrstards and promote environmentally cle
business practices.

Develop new products and servict

We continue to develop new solution offerings iddhg ultimate user medication disposal (MedSafe BakkAway Medication Recovery System)
mailback services for DEA registrant expired inweptof controlled substances (TakeAway Medicati@t®ery System DEA Reverse Distribui
for Registrants). These innovative product andisereofferings allow us to gain further sales froriséng customers as well as gain new custo
who have a need for more comprehensive produé¥e will continue our efforts to develop new solatiofferings designed to facilitate the proper
cost effective management of medical waste, usetthoare materials, pharmaceutical waste, hazard@asse and unused dispensed medicatio
better serve our customers and the environmentitidddlly, we will continue to seek out and idegtrospective new customers and markets for
solutions designed to meet the needs of these nsigroer segments.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT AND SUPPLIERS

There is a concentration of credit risk associatétl accounts receivable arising from sales torogjor customers For the fiscal year ended June
2015, one customer represented approximately 17%wenue. This customer represented approximagly of $0.5 million, of the total accou
receivable balance at June 30, 2015. For the figgal ended June 30, 2014, one customer represappedximately 20% of revenue. This custo
represented approximately 13%, or $0.6 millionthef total accounts receivable balance at June@B}. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
customer represented approximately 22% of revefesnay be adversely affected by our dependenclimited number of high volume custom
Management believes that the risks are mitigatedi)bthe contractual relationships with key custos€ii) the high quality and reputation of
Company and its solution offerings and (iii) thentioued diversification of our solution offeringstd additional markets outside of its traditic
customer base.

We currently transport (from the patient or usethi®e Companys facility or subcontracted treatment facilitiels§ tmajority of our solution offerini
using USPS; therefore, any lotgrm interruption in USPS delivery services wouldrapt the return transportation and treatment elgnof ou
business. Postal delivery interruptions are ramdi#onally, since USPS employees are federal eygas, such employees may be prohibited

engaging in or continuing a postal work stoppaghoaigh there can be no assurance that such woppage can be avoided. We also hav
arrangement with UPS whereby UPS transports oueAalky Recovery System line of solution offeringbeTability to ship items, whether throt
the USPS or UPS, is regulated by the governmentraladed agencies. Any change in regulation restgcthe shipping of medical waste, u
healthcare materials or unused or expired dispepisatnaceuticals through these channels would trendmtal to our ability to conduct operations.

We maintain relationships with multiple raw matégiauppliers and vendors in order to meet custatearands and assure availability of our proc
and solutions. With respect to the Sharps Reco8gsfem solutions, we own all proprietary molds died and utilize three contract manufacturer
the production of the primary raw materials. Weidned that alternative suitable contract manufactusee readily available to meet the produc
specifications of our products and solutions. Whzetnational suppliers for the majority of thewanaterials used in our other products and sols
and international suppliers for Pitch-It IV Poles.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

We have a portfolio of trademarks and patents, lgoéimted and pending. We consider our trademargsiirant in the marketing of our products
services, including Sharps logo, Sharps Recovesye8y, TakeAway Medication Recovery System, MedSaifierpsTracer, Sharps Secure, Take/
Environmental Return System, Complete Needle andLREDRX™ among others. With respect to our registereatks) we continue using st
marks and will file all necessary documentatiomi@intain their registrations for the foreseeabterel We have a number of patents issued, inch
those applicable to our PELLBRX waste conversion process (patent numbers U&&45, US 8,100,989, US 8,268,073 and US 4,44), %4
Sharps Secure Needle Disposal System (patent neni®r8,162,139 and US 8,235,883), our unique defggtures related to the TakeAv
Environmental Return System droff boxes (patent number US 8,324,443) and our QetmpNeedle Collection & Disposal System (patennbei
US 4,463,106). We have patents pending on our Médiaste Management System (Sharps MWMS rapid gepat system) and our MedS
solution.
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COMPETITION

There are several competitors who offer similaidemtical products and services that facilitate digposal of smaller quantities of medical we
There are also a number of companies that focusfedly on the marketing of products and serviedsch facilitate disposal through transport by
USPS (similar to the Comparsyproducts). These companies include (i) smalleafg companies or (ii) divisions of larger compamiAdditionally
we compete in certain markets with Stericycle,l#igest medical waste company in the country, wdcuises primarily on a pickup service busi
model. With the addition of the routesed pickup services offered through a networknedlical and hazardous waste services providersefisas
plans to expand our routeased pickup services in Texas and throughout tr¢heast, the Company believes it is better potib with it
comprehensive medical waste management offeringptopete with Stericycle. As Sharps continues tavgand increase awareness of the pr
disposal of syringes and unused medications (imetudontrolled substances), it could face additi@mal possibly significant competition. We beli
our comprehensive line of proven solution offeringgmprehensive medical waste management servieengfs, first mover advantages, excel
industry reputation, significant history of markatd customer success, quality solutions and predast well as our capabilities as a vertically-
integrated producer of products and services pesvgiignificant differentiation in the current cortifpee market.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

Sharps is subject to extensive federal, state ardéal laws, rules and regulations. We are regui@ obtain permits, authorizations, appro\
certificates and other types of governmental pesimisfrom the EPA, the State of Texas and the Igoakernments in Carthage, Texas with respe
our facilities. Such laws, rules and regulationgehbeen established to promote occupational safetyhealth standards and certain standards
been established in connection with the handliramsportation and disposal of certain types of gadind solid wastes, including transported me
waste. Our estimated annual costs of complying wittse laws, regulations and guidelines is curyeless than $200,000 per year. In the e
additional laws, rules or regulations are adoptddchv affect our business, additional expendituresy rhe required in order for Sharps to b
compliance with such changing laws, rules and egns.

COMPLIANCE WITH ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS

In November 2005 and September 2009, the EPA and ¢itas Commission on Environmental Quality proratdd new regulations under the Cl
Air Act and associated state statutes which affieetincineration portion of our operation of theatment facility located in Carthage, Texas. T
regulations modified the emission limits and moniitg procedures required to operate an incinerafawility. These new regulations and
Company’s Title V permit required additional emiss+elated monitoring equipment and compliance. Suwéinges required us to incur caf
expenditures, which have been reflected in cashsflivtom investing activities in the Compasyconsolidated statement of cash flows in orden¢e
the requirements of the new regulations.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
We may be unable to manage our growth effectively.

We continue to experience core revenue growth forafigear 2015 as we saw the benefits of our margeictivities in all of our target marke
Revenue increased 16% to $30.9 million for thediigear ended June 30, 2015 driven by increasteinetail market due primarily to flu shot rele
business, government purchases of unused medicaamagement solutions, continued rollout of newepatsupport programs in the pharmaceu
market, targeted telemarketing initiatives and pstamal activities in the professional market ancdréases in the assisted living mark@&the increas
in revenue and execution of our growth strategias placed and will continue to place significantndads on our financial, operational
management resources. In order to continue ourthrome may need at some point to add operatiomsjrastrative and other personnel and to n
additional investments in the infrastructure anstesms. There can be no assurance that we will leet@fiind and train qualified personnel, do soa
timely basis or expand our operations and systertiset extent and in the time required.
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The loss of the Company’s senior executives couféa the Company’s ability to manage the busingssefitability.

Our growth and development to date has been ladgggndent on the active participation and leadershits senior management team consistir
the Companys CEO and President, Senior Vice President of S¥lies President and CFO, Vice President of Openati Vice President of Qual
Assurance and Vice President of Marketing. We belitaat the continued success of the businessgslyadependent upon the continued employi
of the senior management team and has, therefpastéred into individual employment arrangemaenmith key personnel and (ii) approved the Ani
Incentive Compensation Plan for participation by #enior management team in order to provide aniie for their continued employment with
Company. The unplanned loss of one or more memifetise senior management team and our inabilithite key employees could disrupt
adversely impact the Company’s ability to exectdéusiness plan.

The Board of Directors oversees CEO and senior gemant succession planning. The process focusdmiitiiing management depth, consic
continuity and stability within the Company andpesds to Sharpgvolving needs and changing circumstances. ThedBapgproves continuity pla
for the CEO and senior management succession pignoienable the Board to respond to planned axpewed vacancies in key positions. The B
considers optimizing the ongoing safe and soundatip@ of the Company and minimizing any potentigruption or loss of continuity to our busin
and operations as it evaluates the plan.

Our business is dependent on a small number of onstrs. To the extent we are not successful in wimnadditional business mandates from ¢
government and commercial customers or attractingwcustomers, our results of operations and finasatondition would be adversely affecte

We are dependent on a small group of customeegddition, there is a concentration of credit riskaciated with accounts receivable arising from
sales to our major customers. For the fiscal yemled June 30, 2016ne customer represented approximately 17% of teveifihis custom:
represented approximately 7%, or $0.5 million, loé total accounts receivable balance at June 3I5.2® the extent significant customers
delinquent or delayed in paying, or we are not essful in obtaining consistent and additional besinfrom our existing and new customers,
results of operations and financial condition wolddadversely affected.

Aggressive pricing by existing competitors and #@rance of new competitors could drive down then@many's profits and slow its growth.

There are several competitors who offer similaidemtical products and services that facilitate digposal of smaller quantities of medical we
There are also a number of companies that focusfidly on the marketing of products and servjoshich facilitate disposal through transpor
the USPS (similar to the Compasyproducts). These companies include (i) smallévapr companies or (ii) divisions of larger compes
Additionally, we do compete in certain markets wittericycle, the largest medical waste companyéncountry, which focuses primarily on a pic
service business model. As Sharps continues to graincrease awareness of the proper disposatriofes and unused medications, it could
additional and possibly significant competition. &sesult, we could experience increased pricieggures that could reduce our margins. In add
as we expand our business into other markets,uhwer, type and size of our competitors may exphtahy of these potential competitors may
greater financial and operational resources, fiéibto reduce prices and other competitive adeget that could adversely impact our cui
competitive position.

The lack of customer long-term volume commitmentaitd adversely affect the Company’s profits andutg growth.
Although we enter into exclusive contracts with thajority of our enterprise customers, these cetgrdo not have provisions for firm lotgrr

volume commitments. In general, customer purchaders may be canceled and order volume levels eachhnged or delayed with limited or
penalties. Canceled, delayed or reduced purchasesocould significantly affect our financial perfeance.
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The Company is subject to extensive and costly fatlestate and local laws and existing or future gelations may restrict the Comparg’
operations, increase our costs of operations anthjsat us to additional liability.

We are subject to extensive federal, state andcalllaws, rules and regulations. We are requitedkttain permits, authorizations, appro
certificates and other types of governmental pesimisfrom the EPA, Texas and the local governmen@arthage, Texas with respect to our facili
Such laws, rules and regulations have been edtalli® promote occupational safety and health aralsdand certain standards have been estak
in connection with the handling, transportation atisposal of certain types of medical and solid tessincluding transported medical waste.
believe that we are currently in compliance imaditerial respects with all applicable laws and laiipns governing our business, including the pts
and authorizations for our incinerator facility. IGastimated annual costs of complying with theses|aegulations and guidelines is currently less
$200,000 per year. In the event additional lawkesrer regulations are adopted which affect ouirtass, additional expenditures may be requir
order for us to be in compliance with such chandegs, rules and regulations. Furthermore, any risteelaxation of any existing regulat
requirements governing the transportation and daspof medical waste could result in a reduced dehfar our products and services and could
a material adverse effect on our revenues and diahnondition. The scope and duration of existamgl future regulations affecting the medical
solid waste disposal industry cannot be anticipatediare subject to change.

In November 2005 and September 2009, the EPA and ¢itas Commission on Environmental Quality proratdd new regulations under the Cl
Air Act and associated state statutes, which affeetincineration portion of our operation of theatment facility located in Carthage, Texas. T
regulations modified the emission limits and monitg procedures required to operate an incinerafamility. These new regulations and
Company’s Title V permit required additional em@ss+elated monitoring and compliance. Such changesined] us to incur capital expenditul
which have been reflected in cash flows from inwgstactivities in the Company’ consolidated statement of cash flows in ordemeet thi
requirements of the new regulations.

The inability of the Company to operate its treatmidacility would adversely affect its operations.

Our business utilizes a treatment facility for gveper disposal or treatment of medical waste, tmadth care materials and unused pharmaceu
Our owned facility has both incineration and awtwel technologies in Carthage, Texas (Panola CauBhgrps believes it operates and maintain
facility in compliance in all material respects hwill federal, state and local laws and/or any rotegulatory agency requirements involving treatt
and disposal and the operation of the incineratar @utoclave facility. The failure to maintain thermits for the treatment facility or unfavors
conditions contained in the permits or new regafei could substantially impair our operations asduce our revenues. During fiscal years .
through 2015, the Company, under agreements witraesubcontractors, utilized six treatment féei owned by subcontractors of the Comp
which are located across the country for the promatment of medical waste and used healthcarerialst generated by our customers. This ha
only reduced the Company’s return transportatiostcdut also provides bacip treatment facility capabilities in the event difruption at th
Companys treatment facility in Carthage, Texas. Any disiupin the availability of a disposal or treatméantility, whether as a result of action ta
by governmental authorities, natural disasterstloerise, would have an adverse effect on our dipergand results of operations.

The handling and disposal or treatment of regulatecste carries with it the risk of personal injutp employees and others.

Our business requires us to handle materials tlet be infectious or hazardous to life and propémtyther ways. Although our products i
procedures are designed to minimize exposure sethmterials, the possibility of accidents, leakd]s, and acts of God always exists. Human bg
animals or property could be injured, sickened amédged by exposure to regulated waste. This indoutd result in lawsuits in which we are fol
liable for such injuries, and substantial damagesd:-be awarded against us. While we carry liabilisurance intended to cover these continger
particular instances may occur that are not inswagainst or that are inadequately insured agafstuninsured or underinsured loss coulc
substantial and could impair our profitability amaiuce our liquidity.

An inability to win additional government contractsould have a material adverse effect on our op@as and adversely affect our future revent

A material amount of our revenues were generatenligh a contract with a major U.S. government agéacthe period from March 2009 through
contract's termination in January 2012 totaling $88lion. In the years subsequent to the contratgisnination, our Compamyide revenue
experienced a decrease compared to prior peridtlsovgh the Company has secured additional U.S.eBGwwent business during fiscal year 2
there can be no assurances that future periodsneliide similar business. All contracts with, atbsontracts involving, the federal government
terminable or subject to renegotiation by the agtlie governmental agency on 30 daystice at the option of the governmental agencw. tfaterie
contract is terminated or renegotiated in a marinar is materially adverse to us, our revenuesfanhde operations could be materially adver
affected.

14




Table of Content

As a government contractor, we are subject to esfga government regulation, and our failure to cofgpwith applicable regulations could subje
us to penalties that may restrict our ability tormauct our business .

Governmental contracts or subcontracts involvingegomental facilities are often subject to speqifiocurement regulations, contract provisions &
variety of other requirements relating to the fotioa administration, performance and accountinghefe contracts. Many of these contracts inc
express or implied certifications of compliance hwépplicable regulations and contractual provisidhsve fail to comply with any regulatior
requirements or statutes, our existing governmestdatracts or subcontracts involving governmengailities could be terminated, or we coulc
suspended from government contracting or subcdinitadf one or more of our governmental contramtsubcontracts are terminated for any ree
or if we are suspended or debarred from governmenit, we could suffer a significant reduction inpexted revenues and profits. Furthermore,
result of our governmental contracts or subcordgragtolving governmental facilities, claims for tiwr criminal fraud may be brought by 1
government for violations of these regulationsuregments or statutes.

The possibility of postal work interruptions and seictions on shipping through the mail would adwaly affect the disposal or treatment elemer
the Company’s business and have an adverse effaatur operations, results of operations and finaaticondition.

We currently transport (from the patient or usethl®e Companys facility or subcontracted treatment facilitielsg tmajority of our solution offerini
using USPS; therefore, any lotgrm interruption in USPS delivery services wouldrapt the return transportation and treatment elgnof ou
business. Postal delivery interruptions are ramdi#onally, since USPS employees are federal eygas, such employees may be prohibited
engaging in or continuing a postal work stoppadoagh there can be no assurance that such woppage can be avoided. As noted above
entered into an arrangement with UPS whereby UBSsports our TakeAway Recovery System line of smubfferings. The ability to ship iten
whether through the USPS or UPS, is regulated bygtivernment and related agencies. Any changeginagon restricting the shipping of medi
waste, used healthcare materials or unused orezkgdispensed pharmaceuticals through these chanpald be detrimental to our ability to cond
operations. Notwithstanding the foregoing, anyufion in the transportation of products would haveadverse effect on our operations, resu
operations and financial condition.

The Company'’s stock has experienced, and may cargito experience, low trading volume and price wdity.

Our common stock has been listed on the NASDAQ t@bMarket (“NASDAQ”) under the symbol “SMEDSince May 6, 2009. The daily trad
volumes for our common stock are, and may contioulee, relatively small compared to many other lpltraded securities. Since trading on
NASDAQ, our average daily trading volume has begpreximately 67,000 shares. It may be difficult fiovestors to sell shares in the public mark
any given time at prevailing prices, and the pd€eur common stock may, therefore, be volatile.

We may be subject to information technology sysfaitures, network disruptions and breaches in dagacurity.

We rely upon sophisticated information technologgtems, infrastructure and security proceduressystems to operate our business and ensu
secure storage and transmission of information. Sihe and complexity of our computer systems méalesnt potentially vulnerable to breakdo'
malicious intrusion and random attack. Likewisenpoter networks and the internet are, by naturievable to unauthorized access. An acciden
willful security breach could result in unauthodzaccess and/or use of sensitive data. Our seaquggsures could be breached by tlpedty actior
computer viruses, accidents or error or miscontbycan employee or contractor. Because techniqued tssobtain unauthorized access, disab
degrade service or to sabotage computer systeraagehfrequently, it may be difficult to detect inuiretely and we may be unable to implen
adequate preventive measures. Unauthorized pan@ssalso attempt to gain access to our systemsailities through various means, includ
hacking into our systems or facilities, fraud, kecy or other means of deceiving employees, cottra@and temporary staff. We have encount
threats of this type from time to time, none of @fhhave materially impacted our operations or fai@nresults. Although we maintain a syster
information security and controls, a party thatatde to circumvent our security measures could eanterruption in our operations, damage
computers or those of our users or otherwise dansagereputation. Depending on the severity, anythefse events could adversely affect
operations and financial results. In addition, & were to experience an information security breaghmay be required to expend significant amc
to remedy, protect against or mitigate the efféddhe breach, and we may not be able to remedsgitbation in a timely manner, or at all. While
have invested in protection of data and informatechnology, there can be no assurance that oortefivill prevent breakdowns or breaches in
systems that could adversely affect our business.
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Risks associated with our acquisition strategy abaldversely affect our operating resul

We expect a portion of our growth to come from asitjons and continue to evaluate opportunitiesdoquiring businesses that may supplemer
internal growth. However, there can be no assurdmaewe will be able to identify and purchase ahli# operations. In addition, the success ol
acquisition depends in part on our ability to imtgg the acquired business. The process of iniegratquired businesses may involve unfore
difficulties and may require a disproportionate amoof management’s attention and the Compafigancial and other resources. There can |
assurance that any acquisitions, if completed, véilsuccessful.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
As of the date of this report, we do not have amesolved staff comments.
ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Sharps leases 119,489 square feet of space in dfpuBtxas. Sharps has manufacturing, assemblyibdion and warehousing operations on F
Road in Houston, Texas, and corporate offices abyKDrive in Houston, Texas. The Company amendedctirporate office lease agreemen
August 5, 2015, to include an additional 9,368 sedeet of space in Houston, Texas to expand catpaffice space effective in November 2015.
Company’s leases expire in 2020 with options tevethe leases for warehouses for 5 years and ficeafpace for 10 years.

We own and operate a fullyermitted facility in Carthage, Texas that housasprocessing and treatment operations in an et&ark?,000 square fc
building on 4.5 acres of land. The facility is péted to process 100 tons per day of medical, phaeutical and other healthcare related waste
incinerator at the facility is currently permittéal treat 40 tons per day of municipal solid wastthw0% of this amount identified as applicabli
healthcare facility generated medical waste, wihieeautoclave is capable of treating up to eighs foer day of medical waste.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
None.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable

PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS, AND | SSUER PURCHASE!
OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information : Beginning May 6, 2009, the Company’s common sthels been quoted on the NASDAQ under the symbol EBM
Previously, the Company’s common stock was quotethe over-the-counter (“OTC”) Bulletin Board undbe symbol “SCOM”Since trading on tt
NASDAQ, the Compar’s common stock had an average trading volume abappately 67,000 shares traded per month. Thesthblow sets for
the high and low closing prices of the Compangdmmon stock on the NASDAQ (July 1, 2013 throégigust 24, 2015) for each quarter within
last two fiscal years.
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Common Stocl

High Low

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 201.

First Quartel $ 3.07 $ 2.51
Second Quarte $ 51C $ 2.9¢
Third Quartel $ 53¢ $ 4.1¢
Fourth Quarte $ 47C $ 3.8¢
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 201!

First Quartel $ 47¢ $ 4.31
Second Quarte $ 55 § 4.1¢
Third Quartel $ 6.3t $ 4.2t
Fourth Quarte $ 6.9t $ 5.51
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 201

First Quarter (August 24, 201 $ 6.9¢ $ 6.1C

Stockholders: At August 24, 2015, there were 15,386, 8%Ares of common stock held by approximately 198eme of record. The last reported !
of the common stock on August 24, 2015 was $6.35Ipare.

Dividend Policy : The Company has never declared nor paid anyaigglends on its common stock. The Company curyentends to retain its ca
generated from operations for working capital pggsoand to fund the continued expansion of itsnessi and does not anticipate paying any divic
on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities: On January 7, 2013, the Company announced ghBbird of Directors approved a stock repurchasgrpn
effective January 3, 2013, authorizing the Compi@nsepurchase in the aggregate up to $3 millioitsobutstanding common stock over a tyer
period. On March 5, 2015, the Board approved a\ytear extension of the stock repurchase progranugitr@ddanuary 1, 2017. The shares woul
purchased from time to time on the open markenhgrivately negotiated transactions, at the Comjsadigcretion, in each case, in compliance
Rule 10b18 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asndled, subject to market and business conditiggpdicable legal requirements, expl
black-out dates and other factors. The purchases wilubded using the Company's available cash balasmoesash generated from operations.
program does not obligate the Company to acquiyeparticular amount of common stock and may be frext]/isuspended or terminated at any tin
the Company's discretion in accordance with Rule-18.

During the three months ended June 30, 2015, Semschased no shares. As of June 30, 2015, appately $2.2 million remained of our $:
million repurchase program.

Corporate Performance Graph*: The graph compares the cumulative total return, §teck price appreciation) on the Company’s comstock
from the first day it began trading on the NASDARaach year thereafter with the cumulative tatalnn for the same period on the NASDAQ Sr
Cap Index and the Dow Jones US Waste and Dispesaic8s Index. The graph assumes that $100 wasteden June 30, 2010 in our common s
and in the stock represented by each of the twicésd
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*The Corporate Performance Graph and related irdtion shall not be deemed "soliciting material'torbe "filed" with the SEC, nor shall st
information be incorporated by reference into amyffe filing under the Securities Act or the Exofp@rAct except to the extent that we specific
incorporate it by reference into such filing.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans:
The following equity compensation plan informatisrprovided as of June 30, 2015:

Number of securities
Weighted avera¢ remaining available for
Number of securities exercise price of future issuance under
be issued upon exerc  outstanding equity compensation pla
of outstanding option options, warrant  (excluding securities

Plan Categor warrants and right and rights reflected in column (e
(@) (b) (c)

2010 Stock Plan as approved by shareholders (: 1,085,24! $ 4.2C 1,597,083

Notes:

(1) Represents stock options issued under thepShaompliance Corp. 2010 Stock Plamhe 2010 Stock Plan replaced the 1993 Stock PI
November 2010. There are 302,558 stock optionsdsunder the 1993 Stock Plan (with a weighted ajyeeexercise price of $5.31) which ren
outstanding subsequent to the replacement of thg $8ock Plan

(2) Number of securities to be issued and weighteztage exercise price include the effect of 13a#8es of restricted stock issued to the Boa
Directors.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected historical financial datashzeen derived from our audited financial stateswemid should be read in conjunction with
historical Consolidated Financial Statements atated notes (in thousands except earnings per sladag:
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Revenue:

Operating Income (Los:

Net Income (Loss

Net Income (Loss) per shal

Basic
Diluted

Total Asset:
Total Debt

Cash and Cash Equivalel

Working Capital

Total Stockholders' Equit

For the Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
$ 30,90 $ 26,57C $ 2153 $ 21,787 $ 19,39t
$ 1,23 $ 965 $ (2,709 $ (2,52) $ (4,536)
$ 1,16 $ 95¢€ $ (2719 $ (3.62) $ (2,975
$ 0.06 $ 0.06 $ (.19 $ 029 $ (0.20)
$ 0.07 $ 0.06 $ (0.15 $ 029 $ (0.20)
$ 29,75 $ 26,46 $ 2553; $ 27,63t $ 30,59¢
$ - 8 - $ - 9 - 9 -
$ 15,157 $ 13,717 $ 15,50: $ 17,49t $ 18,28(
$ 19,71 $ 17,88t $ 16,64: $ 18,607 $ 20,22¢
$ 2358t $ 21,90 $ 21,07C $ 23,18 $ 25,86¢

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The discussion and analysis presented below shmilcead in conjunction with the consolidated finahstatements and related notes appe
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Seé&fmation Regarding Forward Looking Statements.”

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following analyzes changes in the consolidafeerating results and financial condition of ther@any during the year ended June 30, 2015,
and 2013, respectively. The following table setsifdor the periods indicated certain items frora @ompanys Consolidated Statements of Operal
(dollars in thousands except for percentages egpdess a percentage of revenues ):

Revenues
Cost of revenues
Gross profi
SG&A expense
Legal settlemer

Depreciation and amortizatic

Operating income (loss;
Other income

Income (loss) before income tax

Income tax expens
Net income (loss

Year Ended June 30

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AS COMPARED TO YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2014

2015 % 2014 % 2013 %
30,90z 100.(% $ 26,57( 100.% $ 21,53( 100.%
19,907 64..% 17,58 66.2% 15,18 70.5%
10,99¢ 35.6% 8,98¢ 33.&% 6,347 29.5%
9,49¢ 30.7% 9,10(¢ 34.2% 8,61¢ 40.(%
- 0.C% (1,539 (5.8%) - 0.C%
262 0.5% 462 1.7% 437 2.(%
1,23¢ 4.C% 96E 3.€% (2,709 (12.€%)
3€ 0.1% 24 0.1% 12 0.1%
1,272 98¢ (2,697)
112 0.4% 33 0.1% 15 0.1%
1,16( 3.8% $ 95€ 3.6% $ (2,717 (12.€%)

Total revenues for the fiscal year ended June 305 2f $30.9 million increased by $4.3 million, 18.3%, from the total revenues for the fiscal
ended June 30, 2014 of $26.6 million. Billings bgriket are as follows (in thousands):
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Year Ended June 30
2015 2014 Variance
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

BILLINGS BY MARKET:

Retail $ 8,72¢ $ 6,40¢ $ 2,32(
Home Health Car 6,80c 7,251 (449)
Professiona 6,22 5,311 914
Pharmaceutical Manufactur 4 85¢ 3,73¢ 1,12C
Assisted Living 1,87¢ 1,712 16€
Governmen 1,75¢ 49t 1,261
Environmenta 36¢ 75k (387)
Other 891 941 (50

Subtotal 31,50z 26,60 4,89¢
GAAP Adjustment * (600) (37) (56%)

Revenue Reporte $ 30,90: $ 26,57C $ 4,332

*Represents the net impact of the revenue recagndidjustments required to arrive at reported gglyeaccepted accounting principles (“GAAP”
revenue. Customer billings include all invoiced amits associated with products shipped during thiegeeported. GAAP revenue includes custc
billings as well as numerous adjustments necedsamflect (i) the deferral of a portion of currgreriod sales and (ii) recognition of certain raw
associated with products returned for disposateatinent. The difference between customer billengd GAAP revenue is reflected in the Company’
consolidated balance sheet as deferred revenudN@ee “Revenue Recognition” in “Notes to Consatetl Financial Statements.”

This Annual Report on Form 1K-contains certain financial information not dedvén accordance with GAAP, including customer bi
information. The Company believes this informatisnuseful to investors and other interested pamiessustomer billings represents all invo
amounts associated with products shipped duringpgr®d reported. Such information should not basatered as a substitute for any meas
derived in accordance with GAAP and may not be cnaiple to other similarly titled measures of otb@mpanies. Reconciliation of this informat
to the most comparable GAAP measures is includeseb

The increase in revenues is primarily attributatdeincreased billings in the Retail ($2.3 milliorgovernment ($1.3 million), Pharmaceut
Manufacturer ($1.1 million) and Professional ($thlion) markets. The increase was partially offsgtdecreased billings in the Home Health (
($0.4 million) and Environmental ($0.4 million) nkats. The increase in Retail market billings is doméncreases in flu shot related business.
growing trend of retail pharmacies expanding tieialthcare services and Sharpstimated 75% market share in this segment drigevttyr for the
Company. The increase in Government billings isnprily related to increased sales of the CompaniydkeAway Medication Recovery Syst
envelopes and MedSafe solutions to multiple Govemtragencies. The increase in Pharmaceutical Matuéa market billings is due to the contin
rollout, including resupply orders, of several patisupport programs including three new patieppstt program launches in the current year.
programs include the direct fulfillment of the Sh&rRecovery System to the pharmaceutical manufactupesgram participants, which provides
proper containment, return and treatment of thelleseor injection devices utilized in therapy. Therease in Professional market billings is a resi
continued targeted telemarketing initiatives amshpotional activities to educate doctors, dentigserinarians and other healthcare professionalsi
the favorable economics and convenience of the @ogip Sharps Recovery System. The decrease in HoméhHeate market billings is due to
timing of distributor purchases. The decrease miBnmental market billings was due to timing objercts.

Cost of revenues for the year ended June 30, 2D$5%9 million was 64.4% of revenues. Cost of rexes for the year ended June 30, 2014 of ¢
million was 66.2% of revenue. The higher gross nmafgy the year ended June 30, 2015 of 35.6% (&B&8% for the year ended June 30, 2014
due to the leverage gained from higher revenue.

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A&xpenses for the year ended June 30, 2015 andw2&®&4$9.5 million and $9.1 million, respective
SG&A expense increased $0.4 million due to ongaiwgstment in sales and marketing-related initediv

The Company generated operating income of $1.2amifor the year ended June 30, 2015 compared.®$illion for the year ended June 30, 2(
Operating income for the year ended June 30, 2Gstpesitively impacted by a $1.5 million legal ksettent related to the Compasyclaims again
the U.S. government related to a contract ternonatiWithout the impact of the prior year legaltleetent, operating income increased $1.8 mi
over the prior year mainly due to the increaseeirenues and gross profit (discussed above).
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The Company generated income before income tax@s.afmillion for year ended June 30, 2015 vergu8 illion for the year ended June 30, 2014.
Income before income taxes was positively impabtetmprovement in operating income (discussed apove

The Companyg effective tax rate for the year ended June 305 2@as 8.8% reflecting primarily estimated statoime taxes. The effective tax rate
the year ended June 30, 2014 was 3.3%. The Conpaaydeferred tax assets have been fully reséayedax valuation allowance.

The Company generated net income of $1.2 millianyfar ended June 30, 2015 compared to net incdréig.@ million for the year ended June
2014. Net income was positively impacted by opagaincome (discussed above).

The Company reported diluted income per share @f&for the year ended June 30, 2015 versus dilntzime per share of $0.06 for year ended
30, 2014. Diluted income per share was positivelgacted by improvement in net income (discussedebo

Without the impact of the prior year legal settleitpéncome before taxes, net income and dilutedrime per share increased $1.8 million, $1.7 mi
and $0.11 per share, respectively, during the gaded June 30, 2015 over the prior year.

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AS COMPARED TO YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2013

Total revenues for the fiscal year ended June 304 f $26.6 million increased by $5.0 million, 28.4%, from the total revenues for the fiscal
ended June 30, 2013 of $21.5 million. Billings bgriket are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended June 30
2014 2013 Variance
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

BILLINGS BY MARKET:

Home Health Car $ 7,251 $ 6,721 $ 53C
Retail 6,40¢ 5,041 1,36¢
Professiona 5,311 3,867 1,44¢
Pharmaceutical Manufactur 3,73¢ 2,41: 1,322
Assisted Living 1,71: 1,57¢ 137
Environmenta 75t 182 57¢
Governmen 49t 732 (237)
Other 941 75E 18€

Subtotal 26,60 21,28: 5,32¢
GAAP Adjustment * (37) 247 (284)

Revenue Reporte $ 26,57( $ 21530 $ 5,04(

*Represents the net impact of the revenue recagnidjustments required to arrive at reported gglyeaccepted accounting principles (“GAAP”
revenue. Customer billings include all invoiced amis associated with products shipped during thiegeeported. GAAP revenue includes custc
billings as well as numerous adjustments necedsamgflect (i) the deferral of a portion of currgreriod sales and (ii) recognition of certain raw
associated with products returned for disposateatinent. The difference between customer billewgd GAAP revenue is reflected in the Company’
consolidated balance sheet as deferred revenudN@ee “Revenue Recognition” in “Notes to Consatietl Financial Statements.”

This Annual Report on Form 1K-contains certain financial information not dedvén accordance with GAAP, including customer hik
information. The Company believes this informatisnuseful to investors and other interested paiesustomer billings represents all invo
amounts associated with products shipped duringoth@®d reported. Such information should not basatered as a substitute for any meas
derived in accordance with GAAP and may not be cnaple to other similarly titled measures of otb@empanies. Reconciliation of this informat
to the most comparable GAAP measures is includesieab
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The increase in revenues is primarily attributatdeincreased billings in the Professional ($1.4lion), Retail ($1.4 million), Pharmaceuti
Manufacturer ($1.3 million), Environmental ($0.6llion) and Home Healthcare ($0.5 million) markekse increase in billings was partially offset
decreased billings in the Government ($0.2 milliorgrket. The increase in Professional market b#liis a result of continued targeted telemark
initiatives and promotional activities to educatetrs, dentists, veterinarians and other healéhpasfessionals about the significant cost advas
and convenience of the CompasySharps Recovery mailback system when compardd tvi traditional pickup service for the small gtiisn
generator sector. The increase in Retail markéhdd is due to increases in flu shot related bessn Retail pharmacies are increasing the amou
variety of healthcare services they provide and gggment represents a long-term growth driver kayd competitive advantage, given Sharps’
estimated 75% market share in this segment. Threase in Pharmaceutical Manufacturer market blirggdue to the continued rollout, includ
resupply orders, of several patient support prograrhe programs include the direct fulfillment bétSharpsRecovery System to the pharmaceu
manufacturess program participants which provides the properta@oment, return and treatment of the needlesjeciion devices utilized in thera)
The increase in Home Health Care market billingglue to the timing of distributor purchases. Theréase in Environmental market billings »
driven by focused marketing initiatives around dhparty treatment services which are starting o giaction. The decrease in Core Governr
billings was due to distributor sales of $0.2 roifliin the prior year to a major U.S. agency tolfiate the launch of our solutions in selected tai
bases.

Cost of revenues for the year ended June 30, 2D$4706 million was 66.2% of revenues. Cost of rexes for the year ended June 30, 2013 of ¢
million was 70.5% of revenue. The higher gross nmafgr the year ended June 30, 2014 of 33.8% (we28U5% for the year ended June 30, 2013
due to the leverage gained from higher revenue.

SG&A expenses for the year ended June 30, 2012@h8 were $9.1 million and $8.6 million, respedivé&G&A for fiscal year 2014 was negativ
impacted by legal expenses of $0.3 million relatedur claim to the CDC related to the terminatifrihe government contract and severance co
$0.1 million for a former officer of the CompanyG&A for fiscal year 2013 was negatively impacteddmyverance costs of $0.2 million for a for|
officer of the Company. Excluding these items, SG&#ense increased $0.3 million due to increasked smd marketing-related spending.

The Company generated operating income of $1.0amifor the year ended June 30, 2014 compared tparating loss of $2.7 million for the y:
ended June 30, 2013. Operating income for the geded June 30, 2014 was positively impacted by.& #illion legal settlement related to
Companys claims against the U.S. government related tordract termination. In addition to the legal sstient, the improvement in operal
income resulted from higher billings along with iraped gross margin as a result of greater operd¢iverage gained from higher revenue (discL
above).

The Company generated income before income tax$3.6fmillion for year ended June 30, 2014 verslass before income taxes of $2.7 million
the year ended June 30, 2013. Income before indares was positively impacted by the $1.5 milliegdl settlement and other improvemer
operating income (discussed above).

The Companyg effective tax rate for the year ended June 304 2@as 3.3% reflecting primarily estimated statoime taxes. The effective tax rate
the year ended June 30, 2013 was (0.6%). The Corigpaet deferred tax assets have been fully resldoyea tax valuation allowance.

The Company generated net income of $1.0 millianyfar ended June 30, 2014 compared to a net fd8.6 million for the year ended June
2013. Net income was positively impacted by thé&$iillion legal settlement and other improvementjrerating income (discussed above).

The Company reported diluted income per share diébfbr the year ended June 30, 2014 versus dilosper share of ($0.18) for year ended
30, 2013. Diluted income per share was positivatpacted by the $1.5 million legal settlement anteptimprovement in net income (discus
above).

PROSPECTS FOR THE FUTURE

The Company continues to focus on core marketssahdion offerings that fuel growth. Markets sensed professional offices, retail pharmacies

clinics, assisted living and lortgrm care facilities, home healthcare, governmeinérmaceutical manufacturers and other commercigmzation
that require cost-effective services for managirglical, pharmaceutical and hazardous waste.
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The Company believes its growth opportunities agpsrted by the following:

« A large professional market that consists of déstiseterinarians, clinics, private practice phigis, urgent care facilities, ambulat
surgical centers and others such as acupuncturéatind services. This regulated market consistsmdll to medium quantity generator:
medical, pharmaceutical and hazardous waste whereaw offer a lower cost to service with solutibtmsnatch individual facility needs. T
Company addresses this market from two directi¢ipgield sales which focuses on largdoHlar and nationwide opportunities where we
integrate the routbased pickup service along with our mailback sohdito create a comprehensive medical waste marmagenfiering an
(i) inside and online sales which focus on thevittial or small group professional office

« The shift of healthcare from traditional settingsthie retail pharmacy and clinic markets, where Gloenpany focuses on driving increa
promotion of the Sharps Recovery System. The nurabél.S. retail clinics is projected to increasgndiicantly, as much as 2026% pe
year, driven by the increasing demand of newly iedipatients under healthcare reform, as well &enga looking for more convenient ¢
and retail pharmacies increasing the variety arldme of healthcare services they provide. Accordimghe Centers for Disease Con
("CDC"), 25% of flu shots for adults were administ in a retail clinic with the trend expectedrorease. In addition to the continued grc
in the flu shot business, there are also growthodppities for more primary care in the retail dleenative site setting and correspondir
growth opportunities for the Company based onigaiicant presence in the retail market. A recstidy shows that Americans visit re
clinics 10 million times a year, which represemty@®% of "all primary care patient encountei

« The passage of new regulations for ultimate useaticagon disposal allows the Company to offer nelons (MedSafe and TakeAw
Medication Recovery System envelopes) that meetebalations for ultimate user controlled substandisposal (Schedules W} to retai
pharmacies. Additionally, with the new regulatiotiee Company is able to provide the MedSafe ana:Aalay Medication Recovery Syste
to assisted living and hospice to address a lagdgtg issue within lor-term care

« The changing demographics of the U.S. populatione- out of five Americans will be 65 years or oltdgr2030, which will increase the ne
for cost-effective medical waste management saisti@specially in the longgrm care and home healthcare markets. With malsplution
for managing regulated healthcare-related waste Obmpany delivers value as a single-source providgl blended mailback and route-
based pickup services matched to on the waste wswheach facility

« Local, state and federal agencies have growingsnémdsolutions to manage medical and pharmacdutiaate— the Company's Shar
Recovery System is ideal for aseded disposal of sharps and other small quantfienedical waste generated within governmentdingls
schools and communities. The Company also provilidseAway Medication Recovery System envelopes areti34fe solutions
government agencies in need of proper and regylataimpliant medication disposi

« With an increased number of saifectable medication treatments and local regofesti the Company believes its flagship productSharp
Recovery System, continues to offer the best ogtomproper sharps disposal at an affordable pii¢e Company delivers premium servi
to pharmaceutical manufacturers that sell highadplselfinjectable medications, which include data managgmeompliance reportin
fulfillment, proper containment with disposal, bdamg and conformity with applicable regulations.dddition, the Company provides self-
injectors with online and retail purchase optiorissbarps mailback systems, such as the Sharp Rgc&yestem and Complete Nee
Collection & Disposal System, respective

« A heightened interest by many commercial compawies are looking to improve workplace safety witlopper sharps disposal and unt
medication disposal solutions the Company offers a variety of services to meesé¢hneeds, including the Sharps Secure Needle $2i
System, Sharps Recovery System, Biohazard Spal &itl TakeAway Medication Recovery System envelc

« In July 2015, the Company augmented its networkneflical and hazardous waste service providers aitlacquisition of a routbase!
pickup service in the northeast serving PennsybdjaMiaryland and parts of Ohio. Additionally, ther@many has begun to service part
Texas and Louisiana with route-based pickup serW¢ih the addition of these roubmsed pickup regions and the network of medica
hazardous waste service providers servicing thieeedtS., the Company offers customers a blendedumt portfolio to effectively mana
multi-site and multisized locations, including those that generateclagqgiantities of waste. The network has had a fegnit positive impac
on our pipeline of sales opportunities exer 60% of this pipeline is attributable to oppmities providing comprehensive waste manage
service offerings where both the mailback and pickervice are integrated into the offeri
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« The Company has new solution offerings that incluitenate user medication disposal (MedSafe andeAakay Medication Recove
System) and mailback services for DEA registramired inventory of controlled substances (TakeAwésdication Recovery System DI
Reverse Distribution for Registrant

« The Compan's strong financial position with a cash balanc8X8.2 million and no debt as of June 30, 2(
TERMINATED CONTRACT AND LEGAL SETTLEMENT

On January 29, 2009, the Company entered intoegyBar contract with the United States Departmenteitrans Affairs National Acquisition Cen
(“VA NAC") to provide its Sharps MWMS, a rapideployment solution designed to provide medicaltevasllection, storage and treatment in
event of natural disasters, pandemics, meae disasters or other national emergencies iposupf the CDC Division of Strategic National Skpde.
Sharps MWMS also incorporated warehousing, invgnteanagement, training, data and other servicesssacy to provide a comprehensive solu
Sharps performed under the contract through Jar@Br2012. On June 30, 2014, the Company entereajeement to settle its claims agains
United States government and various agenciestketatthe January 2012 termination of the Compafgbruary 2009 contract with the CDC.
settlement agreement resulted in a cash payméit.6fmillion, which was received by the Companyuty 2014.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash Flow

Cash and cash equivalents increased by $1.4 mihi&15.2 million at June 30, 2015 from $13.7 roilliat June 30, 2014The increase in cash and
cash equivalents is primarily due to the receigheflegal settlement of $1.5 million, net inconfié&b.2 million, an increase in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities of $1.1 million and depreciatiof $0.8 million offset by an increase in accouetseivable of $1.9 million and an increase in
inventory of $1.4 million (discussed below).

Accounts receivable increased by $1.9 million to6®@iillion at June 30, 2015 from $4.7 million ain@u30, 2014. The increase is due to timin
billings and collections.

Inventory increased by $1.4 million to $2.7 milliahJune 30, 2015 from $1.3 million at June 30,4220he increase in inventory is due to the timif
sales and changes in inventory levels to facilicaigtomer orders and increased demand.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increaikd million to $3.7 million at June 30, 2015 fr&®.6 million at June 30, 2014, due primarily to
increased inventory levels (discussed above).

Working capital increased $1.8 million to $19.7 lroit at June 30, 2015 from $17.9 million at June 2M4. Working capital was positively impac
by an increase in accounts receivable and invemiffggt by an increase in accounts payable andiaddrabilities (discussed above).

Property, plant and equipment, net decreased hy ®@lion to $3.8 million at June 30, 2015 from $3nillion at June 30, 2014. The decreas
property and equipment is related to depreciatioperse of $0.8 million, partially offset by capitakpenditures of $0.7 million. The cap
expenditures are attributable primarily to (i) treant facility improvements of $0.2 million, (iijpvestment in MedSafe assets of $0.3 million ani}
investment in computer equipment of $0.2 million.

Stockholders’ equity increased by $1.7 million 3% million at June 30, 2015 from $21.9 million Jatne 30, 2014. Stockholdersguity wa:
positively impacted by net income of $1.2 milliomdestock-based compensation of $0.5 million.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company was not a party to any off-balancetstnapsactions as defined in Item 303 of RegulaBdf for the years ended June 30, 2015
2014.
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Contractual Obligations

The Company entered into noancelable operating leases for certain of outlifiacivehicle and equipment needs. These leasesvalk to consen
cash by paying a monthly lease rental fee for ddadilities, vehicles and equipment rather thanchasing them. At the end of the lease, we ha
further obligation to the lessor. If the Companyides to cancel or terminate a lease before theoéitd term, the Company would typically owe
lessor the remaining lease payments under the aéthre lease. The contractual obligations relatechinimum lease payments under raancelabl
operating leases as of June 30, 2015 are as fo(lovtisousands):

Year Ended June 30
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter

Operating lease
obligations $ 74 $ 84 $ 85z $ 867 $ 814 $ 113

Credit Facility

On April 9, 2015, the Company entered into a cradieement with a commercial bank (“Credit Agreetf)efThe Credit Agreement, which replac
in its entirety, the Company’prior credit agreement, which was executed effectanuary 28, 2014 with the same commercial bprdyides for
two-year, $9.0 million line of credit facility, the preeds of which may be utilized as follows: (i)@#illion for working capital, letters of credit§
to $500,000) and general corporate purposes ahdsgiD million for acquisitions. Indebtedness undee Credit Agreement is secured by
Companys accounts receivable and inventory with advanc¢standing under the working capital portion of thedit facility at any time limited to
Borrowing Base (as defined in the Credit Agreemental to 80% of eligible accounts receivable [#0%o of eligible inventory. Advances under
acquisition portion of the credit facility are litad to 75% of the purchase price of an acquiredpamy and convert to a fiwgear term not
Borrowings bear interest at WSJ Prime (for the wuaglcapital line) and WSJ Prime plus 0.25% (for #vguisition line), which were approximat
3.25% and 3.50%, respectively, as of June 30, 20t&.Company pays a fee of 0.25% per annum onriisad amount of the line of credit. As
June 30, 2015, the Company had no outstanding Wisrgs, other than $0.3 million in letters of creditich left $8.7 million of credit available unt
the Credit Agreement.

The Credit Agreement contains affirmative and niegatovenants that, among other things, requireGbhmpany to maintain a minimum level
tangible net worth of $12.5 million, minimum liquig of $7.0 million and a minimum debt service coage ratio of not less than 1.15 to 1.00.
Credit Agreement, which expires on April 9, 201l5oacontains customary events of default whichyri€ured, may terminate the Credit Agreer
and require immediate repayment of all indebtedi@s$se lenders. The Company was in compliance wlitthe financial covenants under the Cr
Agreement as of June 30, 2015.

Management believes that the Compargtrrent cash resources (cash on hand) will Hewuit to fund operations for the twelve monthslieig Jun:
30, 2016.

Treatment Facility

The Companys treatment facility in Carthage, Texas is cursemtrmitted to process 100 tons per day. The imatoe at the facility is current
permitted to treat 40 tons per day of municipaldsalaste with 10% of this amount identified as &mille to healthcare facility generated mec
waste. Approximately six years ago, the Companypkampented the treatment faciligyexisting incineration process with an autoclaygtesn an
technology capable of treating up to eight tons ¢sr of medical waste at the same facility. Auteitlg is a coseffective alternative to traditior
incineration that treats medical waste with stearhigh temperature and pressure to kill pathog@&hg. autoclave system is utilized alongside
incinerator for day-tatay operations. The autoclave system is not impdayethe EPA amended Clean Air Act (discussed belovie believe that ol
facility is one of only ten permitted commerciatiléies in the United States capable of treatitigygpes of medical waste, used healthcare mas
and unused or expired dispensed medicationst{p#,incineration and autoclave capabilities).
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In November 2005 and September 2009, the EPA and ¢itas Commission on Environmental Quality proratdd new regulations under the Cl
Air Act and associated state statutes, which affeetincineration portion of our operation of theatment facility located in Carthage, Texas. T
regulations modify the emission limits and monitgriprocedures required to operate an incineratoititfy. These new regulations and the Company’
Title V permit required additional emissiorslated monitoring equipment and compliance. Suwdnges required us to incur capital expendit
which are reflected in cash flows from investingiates in the Company consolidated statement of cash flows in ordenéet the requirements
the new regulations. No future significant expeissexpected as a result of current regulations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue RecognitionThe Company recognizes revenue from product sahesmwgoods are shipped or delivered and title asidaf loss pass to t
customer except for those sales via multigdiverable arrangements. Provisions for certabates, product returns and discounts to custonre
accounted for as reductions in sales in the samedothe related sales are recorded. Product digsayranted are based on the terms of arrange
with direct, indirect and other market participarts well as market conditions, including pricearged by competitors. Rebates are estimated ban
contractual terms, historical experience, trendyaigand projected market conditions in the vasimarkets served. Service agreements which in
a vendor managed inventory program include terras riteet the “bill and holdtriteria and as such are recognized when the ésdevmpleted :
which point title has transferred, there are neeptance provisions and amounts are segregated i@dmpany’s warehouse.

Certain products offered by the Company have reegmmoducing components that are recognized ovetipteuldelivery points (Sharps Recov
System™ (formerly the Sharps Disposal by Mail Syst&) and various other solutions like the Takeaway Matition Recovery Systems, referred t
“Mailbacks” and Sharp8 Pump and Asset Return Boxes, referred to as “Pustpr®s”)and can consist of up to three separate elements)its o
measure, as follows: (1) the sale of the compliammkcontainer system, (2) return transportatiah(&y treatment service.

In accordance with the relative selling price mettlogy, an estimated selling price is determinedalbdeliverables that qualify for separate urmi
accounting. The actual consideration receivednmuitiple-deliverable arrangement is then allocated to ths liased on their relative sales price.
selling price for the transportation revenue arel tittatment revenue utilizes third party evideridee Company estimates the selling price of
compliance and container system based on the praght services provided including compliance withal, state and Federal laws, adheren
stringent manufacturing and testing requiremeifgty to the patient and the community as welltasage and containment capabilities.

Revenue for the sale of the compliance and conténecognized upon delivery to the customer, hictv time the customer takes title and asst
risk of ownership. Transportation revenue is redegph when the customer returns the compliance amtamer system and the container has
received at the Comparg/’owned or contracted facilities. The compliancd aontainer system is mailed or delivered by apraditive logistic
provider to the Compang’owned or contracted facilities. Treatment reveisuecognized upon the destruction or conversiah @oof of receipt ar
treatment having been performed on the contairirceShe transportation element and the treatmlenments are undelivered services at the poi
initial sale of the compliance and container, tpamtation and treatment revenue is deferred umtilservices are performed. The current and teng-
portions of deferred revenues are determined thraegression analysis and historical trends. Furibee, through regression analysis of histo
data, the Company has determined that a certagepege of all compliance and container systentsrsaly not be returned. Accordingly, a portio
the transportation and treatment elements are nied at the point of sale.

Income Taxes Deferred tax assets and liabilities are deterthivesed on differences between financial repoiimg) tax bases of assets and liabil
and are measured using the enacted tax rates asdtiat will be in effect when the differences ampected to reverse. A valuation allowanc
established when it is more likely than not thameoportion or all of the deferred tax assets wilt be realized. The establishment of value
allowances and development of projected annuatiffetax rates requires significant judgment andémpacted by various estimates. Both pos
and negative evidence, as well as the objectivity eerifiability of that evidence, is considereddatermining the appropriateness of recordi
valuation allowance on deferred tax assets. Undeeglly accepted accounting principles, the valnaallowance has been recorded to reduct
deferred tax assets to an amount that is moreylikeln not to be realized and is based upon thertainty of the realization of certain federal atalte
deferred tax assets related to net operating msgforwards and other tax attributes.
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StockBased CompensationStockbased compensation cost is measured at the gréet lssed on the calculated fair value of the aveard i
recognized as an expense over the employee’s iegsisvice period (generally the vesting periothef equity grant).

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In May 2014, guidance for revenue recognition veasiéd which supersedes the revenue recognitioireetgnts currently followed by the Compe
The new guidance provides for a single fatep model to be applied in determining the amaunat timing of the recognition of revenue relate
contracts with customers. The new standard alsoines additional financial statement disclosurest thill enable users to understand the na
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and déshs relating to customer contracts. Companiesehan option to use either a retrospe
approach or cumulative effect adjustment approadmplement the standard. In July 2015, the FASBid# to defer the original effective date
one year to be effective for annual reporting p#sibeginning after December 15, 2017 instead okEBer 15, 2016 for public entities. The Comg
is still evaluating the impact that the new accoygnguidance will have on its consolidated finahstatements and related disclosures and has t
determined the method by which it will adopt thenstard.

In July 2015, guidance for inventory measuremers wgaued, which supersedes the policy currentipdad by the Company. The new guida
requires the Company to measure inventory at thverl@f cost and net realizable value. The provisiohthe new guidance are effective for an
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2@f®ctive July 1, 2017 for the Company) includingerim periods within that reporting peri
The Company is currently evaluating the impacthefnew guidance on its financial statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

The Company does not have exposure to signifigaab€ial market risk including commodity price rig&reign currency exchange risk or interest
risk. Management does not use derivative instrumeéltie Company has limited exposure to changestémeist rates due to its lack of indebtedr
The Company maintains a credit agreement underhaliee may borrow funds in the future. The Compangsdoot currently foresee any borrow
needs.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The consolidated financial statements of the Comard the notes thereto, and the related repothe@fCompanys independent registered pul
accounting firm thereon are referenced as page®H-120 and are included herein by reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains "disclosure controls andgdaces,” as such term is defined in Rule 186e) under the Exchange Act, that are design
ensure that information required to be disclosedunExchange Act reports is recorded, processednsrized and reported within the time per
specified in the SEC rules and forms, and that snfdrmation is accumulated and communicated to agament, including the Chief Execut
Officer (“CEQ”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO,"rs appropriate, to allow timely decisions regardigguired disclosure. The Company condu
an evaluation (the "Evaluation™), under the supovi and with the participation of the CEO and CBOthe effectiveness of the design and oper

of our disclosure controls and procedures ("DisaglesControls") as of June 30, 2015 pursuant to RuBa-15(e) and 1585(e) of the Exchange A
Based on this Evaluation, the CEO and CFO concltid&dour Disclosure Controls were effective adwfe 30, 2015.
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Changes in Internal Controls

During the quarter ended June 30, 2015, there nerhanges in the Company’s internal controls dwancial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act), that havatenially affected, or are reasonably likely to enitlly affect the Compang’internal control ow
financial reporting.

CEO and CFO Certifications

Appearing immediately following the Signatures gattof this report are certifications of the CEQdahe CFO. The Certifications are require
accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxt#yoRA2002 (the Section 302 Certifications). Them of this Annual Report on Form ¥)-which
you are currently reading, is the information conagy the Evaluation referred to in the Section 8tifications and this information should be 1
in conjunction with the Section 302 Certificatidios a more complete understanding of the topicsemted.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

The Companys management is responsible for establishing anntaiaing adequate internal control over financegorting, as such term is definel
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 186(f). The Company's internal control over finahgigporting is a process designed to provide ressie
assurance to our management and board of direcgasding the reliability of financial reporting gathe preparation of the financial statement:
external purposes in accordance with accountimcjpies generally accepted in the United States.

The internal control over financial reporting indls those policies and procedures that (i) pettaithe maintenance of records that, in reasol
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transaics and dispositions of the assets of the Comp@hyrovide reasonable assurance that transactio
recorded as necessary to permit preparation ofifiahstatements in accordance with accountingcipies generally accepted in the United States
that receipts and expenditures of the Company @irggbmade only in accordance with authorizationsmahagement and directors of the Company
(i) provide reasonable assurance regarding prgmeror timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiaise, or disposition of the Company's asset:
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cofgrover financial reporting may not prevent oreg¢tmisstatements. All internal control systems
matter how well designed, have inherent limitatiansluding the possibility of human error and tieeumvention of overriding controls. Accordinc
even effective internal control over financial refptg can provide only reasonable assurance wispaet to financial statement preparation. £
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness utufe periods are subject to the risk that controésy become inadequate because of chanc
conditions or that the degree of compliance withpblicies or procedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management assessed the effectivehéss Companyg internal control over financial reporting as ahd 30, 2015. In making tt
assessment, it used the criteria set forth by ther@ittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread@ammission (COSO) ifnternal Control-
Integrated Framework (201:. Based on the assessment, the Comgamanagement concluded that, as of June 30, 2B&5Company's interr
control over financial reporting was effective béie® those criteria .
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None

PART I
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The information required by this Item is incorpedtherein by reference to the information under daption “Management” of the Registrant’
definitive Proxy Statement to be filed pursuanRegulation 14A with the SEC relating to its Annigeting of Stockholders to be held on Noven
19, 2015.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, as amendedjreeqjthe Companyg’ executive officers and directors, and persons dreficially own more thi
10% of the Company’ equity securities, to file reports of securitymasship and changes in such ownership with the SEf€cers, directors ar
greater than 10% beneficial owners also are redliyeSEC regulations to furnish the Company withies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.
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To the Company knowledge, based solely on review of the copfesuoh reports furnished to the Company, duringfiteal year ended June
2015, all Section 16(a) filing requirements apgiesato its officers, directors and greater than Ii¥neficial owners were complied with.

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is comprised of certain direstof the Company who are not employees of the Gommr any of its subsidiaries. Mes
Zerrillo (Chairman), Dalton, and Holmes are therent members of the Audit Committee. The Audit Cdttee, among other things, meets with
independent auditors and management representatacgsnmends to the Board of Directors appointneémdependent auditors, approves the s
of audits, interim reviews and other services topee€formed by the independent auditors, approvesdivance all permissible n@udit service:
considers whether the performance of any profeasiervices by the auditors other than servicesiged in connection with the audit function cc
impair the independence of the auditors and revibesesults of audits and interim reviews andateounting principles applied in financial repog
and financial and operational controls. The indelee auditors have unrestricted access to the Aafitmittee and vice versa.

The Board of Directors

The Companys Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Zlexig an independent director who qualifies as agitecommittee financial expert,
that term is defined in Item 407(d)(5)(ii) of Regtibn S-K.

The Companys Board of Directors adopted a Code of Ethics floofaour directors, officers and employees, adrasf in Item 406 under the Securi
Act of 1933, as amended. The Company’s Code otEtlas previously an exhibit to the Annual ReporForm 10K. Individuals may also reques
free copy of the Company’s Code of Ethics from @mnpanys investor relations department. Additionally, @empany posted its Code of Ethics
its website (www.sharpsinc.cojmThe Company intends to disclose any amendmentsr twaivers from, the provisions of its Code ofiEs withir
four business days of the amendment or waiver wigairm 8-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorp@ttherein by reference to the information under ¢hptions “Management” andExecutive
Compensation” of the Registrastdefinitive Proxy Statement to be filed pursuanRegulation 14A with the SEC, relating to its Aahieeting o
Stockholders to be held on November 19, 2015.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The information required by this Item is incorpadterein by reference to the information underctygtions “Security Ownership of Management”
and “Certain Beneficial Owners” of the Registrantlefinitive Proxy Statement to be filed pursuanRiegulation 14A with the SEC, relating to
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on Novemi®, 2015.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item is incorpatherein by reference to the information underdaption ‘Certain Relationships and Rela
Transactions” of the Registraattefinitive Proxy Statement to be filed pursuanRegulation 14A with the SEC, relating to its Amhieeting o
Stockholders to be held on November 19, 2015.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is incorpedtherein by reference to the Registrardefinitive Proxy Statement to be filed pursuas
Regulation 14A with the SEC relating to its Anni¥geting of Stockholders to be held on November2Dd 5.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Exhibit Description of Exhibi
Number
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Reorganization between U.&did4al Systems, Inc., Sharps Compliance, Inc. &@&tockholders, dat
February 27, 1998 (incorporated by reference tatltixh.1 to the Registra’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed March 5, 1998)
3.1 Bylaws of Company (incorporated by reference froxhigit 3.4 to Form 1-KSB, dated June 30, 199-
3.2 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatibl).&. Medical Systems, Inc. (incorporated by refere from Exhibit 3.5 to tl
Registrar’s Transition Report on Form 10KSB40 filed on Sefiten29, 1998)
3.3 Certificate of Elimination of the Series A 10% Mugi Convertible Preferred Stock of Sharps Complia@oep. (incorporated |
reference from Exhibit 3.6 to Form -KSB, filed September 29, 199¢
3.4 Bylaws of Sharps Compliance Inc. (herein refermees the Corporation) dated May 23, 1994 (incotiearay reference from Exhil
3.1 to Form -K, filed May 10, 2010)
3.5 Bylaws of Sharps Compliance Corp (incorporateddignence from Exhibit 3.2 to Forn-K, filed May 10, 2010)
3.6 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Sharps Compliancp @ated May 23, 1994 (incorporated by referencéxioibit 3.2 to Form 8-
K, filed November 19, 2011
4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate (incorporated by refeeginom Exhibit 4.4 to For-1C-KSB, filed September 29, 199¢
4.2 See Exhibits 3.1, 3.2 and 3.3 for provisions of Byaws of the Company, the Articles of Incorpooatiof the Company and t

Certificate of Elimination defining the rights obllers of common share

10.1 Lease Agreement dated as of July 13, 2006, bet8banps Compliance, Inc. and Warehouse Associatgso@ade Centre Kirby |
Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1He Registrar's Current Report on Forn-K, filed July 14, 2006)

10.2 Lease Termination Agreement dated as of July 1862bBetween Sharps Compliance, Inc., Warehouseckgss Corporate Cen
Kirby, Ltd. and Warehouse Associates Corporate teelirby Il, Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Huih 10.2 to the Registrarg’
Current Report on Form-K, filed July 14, 2006)

10.3 Letter Agreement by and between Sharps Compliam®.CGand Claude A. Dance dated December 26, 20@%brfporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Regist’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed December 26, 2007)

10.4 Letter Agreement by and between Sharps Compliarae.@nd Al Aladwani dated March 24, 2008 (incogied by reference
Exhibit 10.2 to the Registre’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed March 12, 2008).:

10.5 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement dated Jyri008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 110.2he Registrang’ Curren
Report on Form-K, filed June 9, 2008

10.6 Lease Agreement dated as of January 30, 2009, eet®8barps Compliance, Inc. and Park 288 Industrlal; (incorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed February 3, 2009

10.7 Amended Lease Agreement dated as of May 27, 2@9%elen Sharps Compliance, Inc. and Park 288 Indydtt C (incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Regist’'s Current Report on Forn-K, filed June 2, 2009

10.8 Sharps Compliance Corp. 1993 Stock Plan, as amdim=xporated by reference from Annex A of the Regnt's Proxy Stateme
on Schedule 14A, filed October 21, 20

10.9 Second Amendment to Lease Agreement between S@arpgliance, Inc. and Warehouse Associates Corp@aigre Kirby I, Itd
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thegiRtran’'s Current Report on Forn-K, filed March 9, 2010)
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10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

Employment Agreement by and between Sharps Congdli@orp. and David P. Tusa dated June 14, 2010@rfincated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed June 14, 2010).

Employment Agreement by and between Sharps Conggli@orp. and Diana P. Diaz dated June 14, 2010rfincated by referen
to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registre's Current Report on Forn-K, filed June 14, 2010).

Contract No. V797-DSNS-9005 dated January 29, 2009 by and between therfregrat of Veterans Affairs and Sharps Complic
Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1h® Registrars Current Report on Forn-K, filed June 25, 2010). *

Sharps Compliance Corp. 2010 Stock Plan dated Nbge2®2, 2010 (incorporated by reference to the Regit's Form 3B, filed or
November 22, 2010

Employment Agreement by and between Sharps Conugjaimc. and Gregory C. Davis dated May 18, 20htafiporated k
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Regist’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed May 18, 2011)

Executive Employment Agreement Amendment betweearfh Compliance, Inc. and David P. Tusa dated Mdict201.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thegiRtran's Current Report on Forn-K, filed March 7, 2012).

Executive Employment Agreement Amendment betweearfsh Compliance, Inc. and Claude A. Dance datedciM&; 201
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thegiRtran’'s Current Report on Forn-K, filed March 7, 2012).”

Executive Employment Agreement Amendment betweerrgsh Compliance, Inc. and Diana P. Diaz dated Ma&ct201.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to thegRtran’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed March 7, 2012).’

Employment Agreement by and between Sharps Congaljdnc. and Berkley C. Nelson dated February P83Xincorporated t
reference to Exhibit 10.1 and Exhibit 10.2 to thegRtran’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed February 19, 2013

Restated Credit Agreement effective April 30, 20bg, and between Sharps Compliance, Inc. and Weltgd-Bank, Nation:
Association (incorporated by reference to Exhilitl1to the Registra’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed on May 6, 2013)
Revolving Line of Credit effective April 30, 201®y and between Sharps Compliance, Inc. and Weligd=8ank, Nation:
Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibi2lto the Registra’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed on May 6, 2013)
Security Agreement effective April 30, 2013, by dretween Sharps Compliance, Inc. and Wells Fargik Bdational Associatic
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to thegRtran's Current Report on Forn-K, filed on May 6, 2013)

Letter Agreement between Sharps Compliance, Ind. Brandon Beaver dated October 21, 2013 (incorpdrdiy reference
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registre’'s Current Report on Forn-K, filed October 23, 2013).

Letter Loan Agreement dated January 28, 2014, lybmtween Sharps Compliance, Inc. and a commebaiat (incorporated t
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Regist’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed on January 30, 2014

Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note dated Jayw28, 2014, by and between Sharps Compliance almt a commercial ba
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thegRtran’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed on January 30, 2014

Security Agreement dated January 28, 2014, by atdden Sharps Compliance, Inc. and a commercidk. b@mcorporated k
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Regist’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed on January 30, 2014

Fourth Amendment to Lease Agreement dated June2@¥4, between Sharps Compliance, Inc. and ParkI288strial, LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thegiRtran's Current Report on Forn-K, filed on June 24, 2014

Third Amendment to Lease Agreement dated Febru8y2015, between Sharps Compliance, Inc. and Wasehdssociate
Corporate Centre Kirby Il, Ltd. (incorporated byamence to 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current ReporEorm 8K, filed on Februar
17, 2015)
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10.28
10.29
14.10

21.1
23.1
23.2
31.1
31.2
321
32.2
101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

*
*%

Loan Agreement dated April 9, 2015, by and betw&barps Compliance, Inc. and a commercial bank (porated by reference
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registre’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed on April 13, 2015)

Fourth Amendment to Lease Agreement dated Augud 5, between Sharps Compliance Inc. and Warehisseciates Corpore
Centre Kirby IV, Ltd. (filed herewith)

Sharps Compliance Corp. Code of Ethics (incorpdrate reference to Exhibit 14.1 to the Regist's Current Report on Form -
KSB, filed on September 20, 200.

Subsidiaries of Sharps Compliance Corp. (filed Wite).

Consent of BDO USA, LLP (filed herewitt

Consent of UHY LLP (filed herewith

Certification of Chief Executive Officer in accortze with Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act (filed herewith)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer in accomize with Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act (filed herewith)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer in accortz with Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act (filed herewith)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer in accomize with Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act (filed herewith)

XBRL Instance Document (filed herewit

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (filed hétte

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutniled herewith)

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Linkbase Document (fileddweith)

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documere(finerewith)

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doeninffiled herewith

This exhibit is a management contract or a comgensalan or arrangemer
Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuaurat request for confidential treatme
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Exchange Act, the registrant caused thpsnteto be signed on its behalf by the undersic
thereunto duly authorized.

SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORF

Dated: August 26, 201 By: /s/ DAVID P. TUSA

David P. Tus:
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
(Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the datiiedted.

Dated: August 26, 2015 By: /s/ DAVID P. TUSA
David P. Tust
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
(Principal Executive Officer

Dated: August 26, 2015 By: /s/ DIANA P. DIAZ
Diana P. Dia:
Vice Presiden
Chief Financial Officel
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

Dated: August 26, 2015 By: /s/ F. GARDNER PARKEF
F. Gardner Parke
Chairman of the Board Of Directo

Dated: August 26, 2015 By: /s/ JOHN W. DALTON
John W. Daltor
Director

Dated: August 26, 2015 By: /s/ PARRIS H. HOLME¢

Parris H. Holme:
Director

Dated: August 26, 2015 By: /s/ PHILIP C. ZERRILLC

Philip C. Zerrillo
Director
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Report of Independent Registered Public AccounfEingm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Sharps Compliance Corp.
Houston, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheet of Sharps Compliance Corp. (a Delawamgocation) and subsidiaries (collectively,
“Company”) as of June 30, 2015 and the related alafeged statements of operations, stockholdeggiity, and cash flows for the year then en
These consolidated financial statements are thgonssbility of the Compang management. Our responsibility is to express @nian on thes
consolidated financial statements based on out.audi

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversight lfld@nited States). Those standards re«
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabtnassurance about whether the consolidatedcimisstatements are free of material misstater
The Company is not required to have, nor were wgaged to perform, an audit of its internal contveér financial reporting. Our audit incluc
consideration of internal control over financiabpogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, butar
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effentiss of the Comparsyinternal control over financial reporting. Accioigly, we express no su
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on & tessis, evidence supporting the amounts and disids in the consolidated financial statem
assessing the accounting principles used and ignif estimates made by management, as well asiaira) the overall consolidated finan
statement presentation. We believe that our auditiges a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the financial position of the Compasy!
June 30, 2015, and the consolidated results of tperations and their cash flows for the year teeded, in conformity with accounting princig
generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Houston, Texa
August 26, 201!
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Sharps Compliance Corp.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsheet of Sharps Compliance Corp. (a Delawapgocation) and subsidiaries (collectively,
“Company”) as of June 30, 2014, and the relatecalithated statements of operations, stockholdegsity and cash flows for each of the two fi
years in the period ended June 30, 2014. Theseokdeaied financial statements are the respongibitit the Company management. C
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesesobdated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those standards re:
that we plan and perform the audits to obtain nealle assurance about whether the consolidatedcielestatements are free of material misstater
The Company is not required to have, nor were wgaged to perform, an audit of its internal contveér financial reporting. Our audits incluc
consideration of internal control over financiabpogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, butar
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effeniss of the Comparsyinternal control over financial reporting. Accimgly, we express no su
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on & tessis, evidence supporting the amounts and disids in the consolidated financial statem
assessing the accounting principles used and wignif estimates made by management, as well asiairad the overall consolidated finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteeneferred to above present fairly, in all materespects, the consolidated financial positio
Sharps Compliance Corp. and subsidiaries as of 30n2014, and the consolidated results of theéraions and their cash flows for each of the
fiscal years in the period ended June 30, 201doinformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America.

/sl UHY LLP

Houston, Texa
August 27, 201«
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SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and par value amounts)

June 30,
2015 2014
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and cash equivalel $ 15,157 $ 13,717
Restricted cas - 111
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubdfttounts of $34 and $23, respectiv 6,647 4,72¢
Legal settlement receivak - 1,53¢
Inventory 2,73¢ 1,32(
Prepaids and other current assets 733 474
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 25,27¢ 21,88¢
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, ne 3,81( 3,85¢
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net of accumulated amortizatmfrs385 and $330, respective 66€ 71E
TOTAL ASSETS $ 29,75. $ 26,46
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payabl $ 1,77¢  $ 1,617
Accruedliabilities 1,917 1,04¢
Deferred revenue 1,877 1,337
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,56¢ 4,00(
LONG-TERM DEFERRED REVENUE, net of current porti 48¢ 524
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 11€ 33
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,16¢ 4,557
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 8
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, $0.01 par value per share; 20,00Gbafes authorized;15,575,041 and 15,460,940 shares
issued, respectively and 15,383,791 and 15,29%k88:s outstanding, respective 15€ 15E
Treasury stock, at cost, 191,250 and 161,801 shepeschased, respective (809) (6817)
Additional paic-in capital 24,34« 23,69¢
Accumulated deficit (10E) (1,265)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 23,58¢ 21,90«
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 29,75. $ 26,46

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsstents
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SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per-share data)

Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013

REVENUES $ 30,90: $ 26,57 $ 21,53(

Cost of revenues 19,907 17,58: 15,18:
GROSS PROFIT 10,99¢ 8,98¢ 6,347

Selling, general and administrati 9,49¢ 9,10( 8,61¢

Legal settlemer - (1,539 -

Depreciation and amortization 263 462 437
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS 1,23¢ 96E& (2,709
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE

Interest incom: 36 24 27

Other expense - - (15)

TOTAL OTHER INCOME 36 24 12

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXE: 1,272 98¢ (2,697)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current 112 33 15

TOTAL INCOME TAX EXPENSE 112 33 15

NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 1,16(C $ 95¢ $ (2,712)
NET INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHAR

Basic $ 0.0 $ 0.06 $ (0.1¢)

Diluted $ 007 $ 0.06 $ (0.1¢)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES USED IN COMPUTING NET INCOBI(LOSS) PER

COMMON SHARE:

Basic 15,327 15,28¢ 15,25¢

Diluted 15,56¢ 15,40: 15,25¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanagistents
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Balances, June 30,
2012

Exercise of stock
options

Stock-based
compensatiol

Issuance of restricted
stock

Shares repurchasi

Net loss

Balances, June 30,
2013

Exercise of stock
options

Stock-based
compensatiol

Issuance of restricted
stock

Shares repurchasi

Net income

Balances, June 30,
2014

Exercise of stoc
options

Stock-based
compensatiol

Issuance of restricted
stock

Shares repurchasi

Net income

Balances, June 3
2015

SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands, except share data)

Common Stock Treasury Stock Retained Earnings

Additional Paid-in  (Accumulated  Total Stockholders'

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit) Equity
15,206,12 $ 152 - $ -3 22,531 $ 491 $ 23,18(
100,44! 1 - - 161 - 162
- - - - 514 - 514
63,74¢ 1 - - (@) - -
- (25,36() (74) - = (74)
- - - - - (2,712) (2,712)
15,370,322 154 (25,360 (74) 23,21 (2,22)) 21,07(
13,12¢ - - - 47 - 47
- - - - 43¢ - 43¢
77,49¢ 1 - - (1) - -
- - (136,44) (607) - - (607)
- - - - - 95€ 95€
15,460,94 15t (161,80) (6871) 23,69: (1,26%) 21,90«
61,10¢ - - - 13¢ - 13¢
- - - - 511 - 511
52,99: 1 - - (1) - -
- (29,449 (228 - - (128
- - - - - 1,16( 1,16(
15,575,04 $ 15€ (191,250 $ (809) $ 24,34 $ (10%) $ 23,58¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financagstents
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SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss $ 1,16C $ 95¢ $ (2,712
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to reshcprovided by (used in) operati
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic 83C 1,10t 1,108
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipn - - 16
Loss on inventory wri-down - 15€ -
Stocl-based compensation expel 511 43¢ 514
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Restricted cas 111 - (111
Accounts receivabl (1,919 (2,139 (380)
Legal settlement receivak 1,53¢ (1,539 -
Inventory (1,419 15€ 587
Prepaid and other current ass (259 10¢ 27
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 1,10¢ 164 313
Deferred revenue 49¢ (69 (309)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIE: 2,16z (65€) (952)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipn (727) (46¢) (909)
Additions to intangible assets (6) (102) (222)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (739 (570 (1,13
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 13¢ 47 162
Shares repurchas: (12§) (607) (74)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 11 (560 88
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 1,44C (1,786 (1,995
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of yei 13,717 15,50: 17,49¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of ye $ 15,157 $ 13,717 $ 15,50
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURE¢
Income taxes paid, net of refunds $ 58 $ 22 $ 18

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanagstents
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SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND BACKGROUND

Organization The accompanying consolidated financial statemgmiude the financial transactions and accouh&harps Compliance Corp. and
wholly owned subsidiaries, Sharps Compliance, tfcTexas (dba Sharps Compliance, Inc.), Sharpsatslamm, Inc. (“Sharps e-Tools"gharp
Manufacturing, Inc., Sharps Environmental Servidaes, (dba Sharps Environmental Services of Tekas) and Sharps Safety, Inc. (collectiv:
“Sharps” or the “Company”). All significant intesmpany accounts and transactions have been elexlingion consolidation.

Business Sharps is a leading full-service provider of ee§ective management solutions for small and mediwintity generators of medical wa
used healthcare materials and unused dispensedatieds. These solutions include Sharps Recovesye8y™ (formerly Sharps Disposal by M
System® ), TakeAway Medication Recovery System™, MedS&fe ComplianceTRACSM |, SharpsTracef , Sharps Secur@ Needle Dispos
System™, Complete Needle Collection & Disposal 8yst', TakeAway Environmental Return System™, Pitch/f™ Poles, Trip LesSysterfi,
Sharps® Pump and Asset Return System and Spill Clean-upiidtRecovery System™,

Concentration of Customers and Service Providdiigere is an inherent concentration of credit askociated with accounts receivable arising
sales to its major customerdg-or the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, oneomest represented approximately 17% of revenuess Tastome
represented approximately 7%, or $0.5 million,haf total accounts receivable balance as of Jun2@®. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 201
customer represented approximately 20% of reveniigs. customer represented approximately 13%, d8 8dllion, of the total accounts receiva
balance as of June 30, 2014. For the fiscal yededdune 30, 2013, one customer represented apa®ly 22% of revenues. The Company ma
adversely affected by its dependence on a limitedber of high volume customers.

Currently, the majority of Sharps transportatiorsdairced with the United States Postal Service PFS, which consists of delivering the Sha
Recovery System from the end user to the Compdagibty. The Company also has an arrangement Wiilied Parcel Service Inc. (“UPSiHhereby
UPS transports the Company’s TakeAway Recoveryefysiroducts from the end user to the Compaifgtility. Sharps maintains relationships \
multiple raw materials suppliers and vendors ineorid meet customer demands and assure availaiilityir products and solutions. With respet
the Sharps Recovery System solutions, the Compang all proprietary molds and dies and utilizeg¢hcontract manufacturers for the productic
the primary raw materials. Sharps believes thatméitive suitable contract manufacturers are rpadiailable to meet the production specificatiof
our products and solutions. The Company utilizesonal suppliers for the majority of the raw magdsiused in our other products and solutions
international suppliers for Pitch-It IV Poles.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue RecognitionThe Company recognizes revenue from product sabemwgoods are shipped or delivered, and title akdof loss pass to tl
customer except for those sales via multigdiverable revenue arrangements. Provisions fidaicerebates, product returns and discounts ttooues:
are accounted for as reductions in sales in theespemniod the related sales are recorded. Prodscbuints granted are based on the tern
arrangements with direct, indirect and other magaaticipants, as well as market conditions, intigdprices charged by competitors. Rebate:
estimated based on contractual terms, historicpkgence, trend analysis and projected market tondiin the various markets servegervice
agreements which include a vendor managed invepiagram include terms that meet the “bill and haldteria and as such are recognized whe
order is completed at which point title has transfé, there are no acceptance provisions and am@uatsegregated in the Companwarehous
During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015, 2042913, the Company recorded revenue from invgriailds that are held in vendor mana
inventory under these service agreements of $2l6mi$1.9 million and $1.1 million, respectivels of June 30, 2015 and 2014, $1.6 million
$1.3 million, respectively, of solutions sold thgbuthat date were held in vendor managed inverppending fulfillment or shipment to patients
pharmaceutical manufacturers who offer these swiatto patients in an ongoing patient support @negr

F-8




Table of Content

SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Certain products offered by the Company have reegmoducing components that are recognized ovetiptauldelivery points (Sharps Recov
System and various other solutions like the TakeAMedication Recovery Systems referred to as “Maiks” and Sharps Pump and Asset Re
Systems, referred to as “Pump Returrasiyl can consist of up to three separate elemantsiits of measure, as follows: (1) the sale ofdbmplianc
and container system, (2) return transportation(8ptreatment service.

In accordance with the relative selling price mettlogy, an estimated selling price is determinedalbdeliverables that qualify for separate urmi
accounting. The actual consideration receivednmuitiple-deliverable arrangement is then allocated to ths liased on their relative sales price.
selling price for the transportation revenue arel tittatment revenue utilizes third party evideridee Company estimates the selling price of
compliance and container system based on the pr@shacservices provided, including compliance witbal, state and Federal laws, adheren
stringent manufacturing and testing requiremeifgty to the patient and the community as welltasage and containment capabilities.

Revenue for the sale of the compliance and contagneecognized upon delivery to the customer, hictv time the customer takes title and asst
risk of ownership. Transportation revenue is redegph when the customer returns the compliance amtamer system and the container has
received at the Comparg/’owned or contracted facilities. The compliancd aontainer system is mailed or delivered by apraditive logistic
provider to the Compang’owned or contracted facilities. Treatment reveisuecognized upon the destruction or conversiah @oof of receipt ar
treatment having been performed on the contairirceShe transportation element and the treatmlentents are undelivered services at the poi
initial sale of the compliance and container, tpamtation and treatment revenue is deferred umtilservices are performed. The current and teng-
portions of deferred revenues are determined thraegression analysis and historical trends. Furibee, through regression analysis of histo
data, the Company has determined that a certageptrge of all compliance and container systengsrealy not be returned. Accordingly, a portio
the transportation and treatment elements are nied at the point of sale.

Income Taxes Deferred tax assets and liabilities are deterthiv&sed on differences between financial repoiimg) tax bases of assets and liabil
and are measured using the enacted tax rates asdtiat will be in effect when the differences amgected to reverse. A valuation allowanc
established when it is more likely than not thamneoportion or all of the deferred tax assets wilt be realized. The establishment of a valu:
allowance requires significant judgment and is iotpd by various estimates. Both positive and negagvidence, as well as the objectivity
verifiability of that evidence, is considered inte®nining the appropriateness of recording a vauallowance on deferred tax assets. Under gdnp
accepted accounting principles, the valuation aloge has been recorded to reduce our deferredssaxsao an amount that is more likely than n
be realized and is based upon the uncertaintyeofdhlization of certain federal and state defetagdassets related to net operating loss carrygs
and other tax attributes.

The income tax provision reflects the full benefitall positions that have been taken in the Corgfgincome tax returns, except to the extent
such positions are uncertain and fall below theogadion requirements. In the event that the Corgpaetermines that a tax position meets
uncertainty criteria, an additional liability or fefit will result. The Company periodically reasses the tax positions reflected in tax returnsofoer
years based on the latest information available det@rmines whether any portion of the tax beneéftected therein should be treated a
unrecognized tax benefit. The amount of unrecoghiag benefit requires management to make sigmifiaasumptions about the expected outcorr
certain tax positions included in filed or yet te fled tax returns. At June 30, 2015 and 2014,Gbenpany did not have any uncertain tax posit
The Company is subject to income taxes in the dn8tates and in numerous state tax jurisdictionsirg the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
Company began doing business in a number of additistates throughout the United States and begdilet state income tax returns in s
jurisdictions. Tax return filings which are subjéatreview by federal and state tax authoritiegubisdiction are as follows
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SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

» United States — fiscal years ended June 30, 20d 2fer

» State of Texas — fiscal years ended June 30, 20d hfter

» State of Georgia — fiscal years ended June 30, aadafter

» State of Pennsylvania — fiscal years ended Jun2@®(® and after
e Other States — fiscal years ended June 30, 201 aftard

None of the Compar's federal or state tax returns are currently uedamination. The Company records income tax relatetest and penalties
applicable, as a component of the provision fooine tax expense. However, there were no such asmoecagnized in the consolidated statemer
operations in 2015, 2014 and 2013.

Accounts Receivable Accounts receivable consist primarily of amoudte to the Company from normal business activitteounts receivab
balances are determined to be delinquent whenrttouat is past due based on the contractual terristtwe customer. The Company maintain
allowance for doubtful accounts to reflect the lilkeod of not collecting certain accounts receieabased on past collection history and specifks
identified among uncollected accounts. Accountgikable are charged to the allowance for doubtfebants when the Company determines the
receivable will not be collected and/or when thecamt has been referred to a third party collectigancy. The Company has a history of min
uncollectible accounts.

StockBased CompensatioBtockbased compensation cost for options and restrgttek awarded to employees and directors is medsurthe grat
date, based on the calculated fair value of theéwaad is recognized as an expense over the engiosequisite service period (generally the ve:
period of the equity grant). Total stock-based cengation expense for the fiscal years ended Jur2038, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Year Ended
June 30,
2015 2014 2013
Stoclk-based compensation expense include:
Cost of revenu $ 22 % 18 $ 21
Selling, general and administrati 48¢ 42C 492
Total $ 511 $ 43¢ $ 514

The Company estimates the fair value of restristedk awards based on the closing price of the @Gorylp common stock on the date of the gi
The Company estimates the fair value of stock ogtiasing the Blaclkscholes valuation model. Key input assumptions usesstimate the fair val
of stock options include the exercise price of #éweard, the expected option term, the expected ilitjadf the Company’s stock over the optian’
expected term, the risk free interest rate oveofii®n’s expected term and the Compamgkpected annual dividend yield. The risk freeriest rate
derived using the U.S. Treasury yield curve in @ffet date of grant. Volatility, expected life adididend yield are based on historical experienud
activity. The fair value of the Company’s stockiopt was estimated on the grant date using thekB3atoles optiompricing model with the followin
assumptions:

Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013
Weighted average ri-free interest rat 0.4% 0.6% 0.5%
Weighted average expected volatil 45% 52% 58%
Weighted average expected life (in ye: 3.4¢ 4.04 4.61

Dividend yield - - -

The Company considers an estimated forfeiturefoatstock options based on historical experienatthe anticipated forfeiture rates during the fe
contract life.
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SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe Company considers all highly liquid invesirisewith a maturity of three months or less attthee of purchase to |
cash equivalents. The Company maintains funds nk lzcounts that, at times, may exceed the linstiied by the Federal Deposit Insure
Corporation (“FDIC”).The risk of loss attributable to these uninsureldrzes is mitigated by depositing funds only inthigedit quality financi:
institutions. The Company has not experienced amgds in such accounts. The Company also mairftaias in a savings account, which is 1(
FDIC insured.

Inventory: Inventory consists primarily of finished goodslasupplies held for sale and are stated at therlofveost or market using the average
method. The Company periodically reviews the valfigems in inventory and provides write-downs aiteroffs of inventory based on its assessr
of physical deterioration, obsolescence, changgwioe levels and other causes. At June 30, 2Qi&| inventory was $2.7 million of which $:
million was finished goods, and $1.4 million wasvraaterials. At June 30, 2014, total inventory 8as3 million of which $0.6 million was finish
goods, and $0.7 million was raw materials. Thereewe writedowns of inventory for the fiscal years ended J80g£2015 and June 30, 2013. T
write-downs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20&¢e $0.2 million and were included in cost of desold.

Property, Plant and EquipmentProperty, plant and equipment, including thirdtpasoftware and implementation costs, is stateccat les
accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computsithg the straighline method based on the estimated useful liveshef assets. Additior
improvements and renewals significantly addinght® asset value or extending the life of the assetapitalized. Ordinary maintenance and reg
which do not extend the physical or economic lif¢he property or equipment, are charged to expassecurred. When assets are retired or othe
disposed of, the cost and related accumulated diegien are removed from the accounts, and anyltiregugain or loss is reflected in the result:
operations for the period.

Computer and software development costs, whichudeclcosts of computer software developed or ohiafoe internal use, all programmit
implementation and costs incurred with developimgrinaluse software, are capitalized during the developrpmject stage. External direct cost:
materials and services consumed in developing t@irhg internal-use computer software are capgiali

The Company expenses costs associated with demglapi obtaining internakse software during the preliminary project stageining ani
maintenance costs associated with system changéstesnaluse software are expensed as incurred. Additionditlg costs of data cleansi
reconciliation, balancing of old data to the newteyn, creation of new/additional data and data exmion costs are expensed as incurred.

Intangible Assets Intangible assets consist of (i) permit costatesl to the Company’treatment facility in Carthage, Texas, (ii) eleymtents (tw
acquired in June 1998, one in November 2003, odamuary 2012, two in April 2012, one in August 20dne in September 2012, one in Decet
2012, one in November 2013 and one in January 2@bd) (iii) defense costs related to certain exgspatents. Permit costs related to the facilig
amortized over the expected life of the treatmantlity. Patent costs are being amortized over seen years, the estimated useful life of the fa
At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the gross carrying atnoiuntangibles was $1.1 million and $1.1 millioespectively and accumulated amortization
$0.4 million and $0.3 million, respectively. Duritige fiscal years ended June 30, 2015, 2014 an8, 204 Company recorded amortization expen
$0.1 million, $0.1 million and less than $0.1 nufli respectively. As of June 30, 2015, future arpation of intangible assets is as follows
thousands):
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SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Year Ending June 30,

2016 $ 56
2017 55
2018 53
2019 53
2020 53
Thereafter 39¢
$ 66

Shipping and Handling Fees and Casthie Company records amounts billed to custom@rsHipping and handling as revenue. Costs incuyetthe
Company for shipping and handling have been class#s cost of revenues.

Additional Product Related CostsThe Company records inbound shipping, purchaaimd) receiving costs, inspection costs, warehousosgs an
other product related costs as cost of revenues.

Advertising Costs Advertising costs are charged to expenses wharrried and totaled $0.6 million, $0.5 million an@l% million for the fiscal yea
ended June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Realization of Londived Assets The Company evaluates the recoverability of prop plant and equipment and intangible or otlssets if facts ar
circumstances indicate that any of those assetbtrbigimpaired. If an evaluation is required, teéneated future undiscounted cash flows assoc
with the asset are compared to the asset’s cargrmgunt to determine if a wrilewn to fair value is necessary. During the yeateenJune 30, 201
an impairment loss of $0.1 million was recognizethted to the leasehold improvements at the AtJa@&orgia facility. No impairment loss v
recognized during the years ended June 30, 2012@hdl

Employee Benefit Plansin addition to group health-related benefits, @@mpany maintains a 401(k) employee savings plailadble to all fulltime
employees. The Company matches a portion of emelogatributions with cash (25% of employee contidruup to 6%). Company contributions
the 401(k) plan were less than $0.1 million in ea€hlthe fiscal years ended June 30, 2015, 2014281@, respectively and are included in sel
general and administrative expenses. For purpdgée group health benefit plan and beginning Fetyd, 2013, the Company sétfsures an amou
equal to the excess of the employesstiuctible (range from $2,000 for each individuadl damily member covered) up to the amount by whid
third party insurance coverage begins (ranges $ar800 for individual up to $14,999 for family coage). The amount of liability at June 30, 2
and 2014 was less than $0.1 million and is incluiskedccrued liabilities. The Company has an Anrinakntive Plan (“AlP")for executives of tt
Company, which provides for cash and stbelsed compensation awards. The aggregate expemgmized during the year ended June 30, 201
the AIP was $0.1 million.

Net Income (Loss) Per Sha: Basic earnings per share (“EP®Ycludes dilution and is determined by dividingdnee or loss available to comn
stockholders by the weighted average number of comsinares outstanding during the period. Dilute® E€flects the potential dilution that co
occur if securities and other contracts to issuamon stock were exercised or converted into comstock.

Fair Value of Financial InstrumentsThe Company considers the fair value of all ficiahinstruments, including cash and cash equitajeaccount
receivable and accounts payable to approximate ¢heiying values at year-end due to their shartrteature.

Seament Reporting The guidance for disclosures about segments oérdarprise requires that a public business enserpeport financial ar
descriptive information about its operating segmei@enerally, financial information is required he reported on the basis used internally
evaluating segment performance and resource abocdathe Company operates in a single segmentsfogwon developing cogffective manageme
solutions for medical waste and unused dispenselicatéons generated outside the hospital and laegéthcare facility setting.
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SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Use of EstimatesThe preparation of consolidated financial statet®ién conformity with accounting principles geribraccepted in the United Sta
requires management to make estimates and assusiat affect the reported amounts of assetd|itied and disclosure of contingent liabilities
the date of the consolidated financial statementsthe reported amounts of revenue and expensagdtiie reporting period. The Company 1
estimates to determine many reported amounts, dimgiubut not limited to allowance for doubtful acods, recoverability of longived assets ar
intangibles, useful lives used in depreciation anmbrtization, income taxes and valuation allowanstexkbased compensation, selling price use
multiple-deliverable arrangements and return rates usedtiimate the percentage of container systems saldvwitl not be returned. Actual rest
could differ from these estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Standard$n May 2014, guidance for revenue recognition vigsued which supersedes the revenue recog
requirements currently followed by the Company. Tieer guidance provides for a single fisep model to be applied in determining the amauna
timing of the recognition of revenue related to tcacts with customers. The new standard also regdditional financial statement disclosures
will enable users to understand the nature, amainming and uncertainty of revenue and cash floglating to customer contracts. Companies ha
option to use either a retrospective approach orutative effect adjustment approach to implemeetdtandard. In July 2015, the FASB decide
defer the original effective date by one year toeffective for annual reporting periods beginnirigegaDecember 15, 2017 instead of Decembe
2016 for public entities. The Company is still exating the impact that the new accounting guidamitiehave on its consolidated financial statem
and related disclosures and has not yet deterntireechethod by which it will adopt the standard.

In July 2015, guidance for inventory measuremens igaued, which supersedes the policy currentlpvi@d by the Company. The new guida
requires the Company to measure inventory at thverd®f cost and net realizable value. The provisiohthe new guidance are effective for an
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2@ft®ctive July 1, 2017 for the Company) includingerim periods within that reporting peri
The Company is currently evaluating the impacthefnew guidance financial statements.

NOTE 3 — PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At June 30, 2015 and 2014, property, plant andmgent consisted of the following (in thousands):

June 30,
Useful Life 2015 2014

Furniture and fixture 3to5year $ 192 $ 192
Plant and equipmel 3to 17 yeat 6,41( 6,15:
Manufacturing 15 year 22C 252
Computers and softwa 3to 5year 1,832 1,657
Leasehold improvemen 3 to 15 year 897 897
Land 19 19
Construction-in-progress 27€ 7

9,84¢ 9,171
Less: accumulated depreciation 6,03¢ 5,31¢
Net property, plant and equipme $ 3,81 $ 3,85¢

Total depreciation expense in the fiscal years éntl;me 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $0.8 million] $illion and $1.1 million, respective
Depreciation expense included in cost of revenoethe fiscal years ended 2015, 2014 and 2013 wé ifidlion, $0.6 million and $0.7 milliol
respectively.
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SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 4 — NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT

On April 9, 2015, the Company entered into a cradieement with a commercial bank (“Credit Agreetf)efThe Credit Agreement, which replac
in its entirety, the Company’prior credit agreement, which was executed effectanuary 28, 2014 with the same commercial bprdyides for
two-year, $9.0 million line of credit facility, the preeds of which may be utilized as follows: (i) $blion for working capital, letters of credit (up
$500,000) and general corporate purposes and5(i@) ®illion for acquisitions. Indebtedness under @redit Agreement is secured by the Compzany’
accounts receivable and inventory with advancestanding under the working capital portion of thedit facility at any time limited to a Borrowi
Base (as defined in the Credit Agreement) equ&08b of eligible accounts receivable plus 50% dfible inventory. Advances under the acquisi
portion of the credit facility are limited to 75% the purchase price of an acquired company anderoto a fiveyear term note. Borrowings b
interest at WSJ Prime (for the working capital Jiaead WSJ Prime plus 0.25% (for the acquisitioe)irwhich was approximately 3.25% and 3.5
respectively, as of June 30, 2015. The Company pdge of 0.25% per annum on the unused amourteofite of credit. As of June 30, 2015,
Company had no outstanding borrowings other thaB $dillion in letters of credit, which left $8.7 Hion of credit available under the Cre
Agreement.

The Credit Agreement contains affirmative and niegatovenants that, among other things, requireGbhmpany to maintain a minimum level
tangible net worth of $12.5 million, minimum liquig of $7.0 million and a minimum debt service coage ratio of not less than 1.15 to 1.00.
Credit Agreement, which expires on April 9, 201l5oacontains customary events of default whichyri€ured, may terminate the Credit Agreer
and require immediate repayment of all indebtedi@s$se lenders. The Company was in compliance wlitthe financial covenants under the Cr
Agreement as of June 30, 2015.

NOTE 5 — INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense are as follimwhousands):

Year ended June 30

2015 2014 2013
Current
Federal $ 29 $ 13 $ -
State 83 20 15
$ 11z  $ 33 §$ 15

The reconciliation of the statutory income tax rat¢he Company effective income tax rate for the fiscal yeardezhJune 30, 2015, 2014 and 20!
as follows:

Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013
Statutory rate 34.(% 34.(% 34.(%
State income taxes, n 5.2% (6.€%) (0.4%)
Meals and entertainme 1.2% 1.2% (0.5%)
Prior year adjustments and other 0.C% (4.C%) 0.5%
Effective rate before valuation allowar 40.5% 24.2% 33.6%
Change in valuation allowance (31.7%) (21.(%) (34.2%)
Effective tax rate 8.8% 3.2% (0.€%)
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SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 5 — INCOME TAXES (continued)

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Compamyded $0.9 million to establish a deferred taxuatibn allowance to fully reserve net deferrec
assets. The Company recorded a $0.4 million an? $dlion release of the deferred tax valuatiomathnce due to taxable income generated d
the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respgctiMad establishment of valuation allowances aneeldpment of projected annual effective
rates requires significant judgment and is impadtgdarious estimates. Both positive and negatiidesce including losses over seven of the
twelve quarters, as well as the objectivity andfiadsility of that evidence, is considered in detéming the appropriateness of recording a valui
allowance on deferred tax assets.

Under generally accepted accounting principles, lilgation allowance has been recorded to redueeCttmpanys net deferred tax assets tc
amount that is more likely than not to be realizedl is based upon the uncertainty of the realimatiocertain federal and state deferred tax a
related to net operating loss carryforwards anerotfx attributes.

At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the significant comptmehdeferred tax assets and liabilities are agprated as follows (in thousands):

June 30,
2015 2014
Deferred tax assets relating
Stock compensatic $ 89z $ 834
AMT and research and development cre 45k 41C
Deferred ren 44 23
Inventory 92 58
Professional fee 163 51
Accrued vacatiol 23 23
Accounts receivable allowan 13 8
Contribution carryover 31 14
Net operating loss carryforwar 1,12¢ 1,751
Total deferred tax asse 2,83 3,17
Deferred tax liablities related to depreciatiorfetiénces (55EF) (487)
Net deferred tax assets before valuation allow: 2,28: 2,68¢
Valuation allowance (2,282) (2,685)
Net deferred tax asse $ - 3 -

During the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014;dhgpany utilized net operating loss carryforwamsificome tax purposes of approximately !
million and $1.0 million, respectively, which hadegiously been fully offset by a deferred tax vaiom allowance in the prior year.

At June 30, 2015, the Company had net operatirgydasryforwards of $3.3 million which will expiré,unused, between June 30, 2031 and Jur
2033. At June 30, 2015, the Company had varioustedit carryforwards of $0.4 million, of which million will expire by June 30, 2030 and $
million which may be carried forward indefinitely.

NOTE 6 - EQUITY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended June 30, 2015, 2014 and, 30d¢k options to purchase shares of the Compaytsnon stock were exercised as follows:
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SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013
NOTE 6 - EQUITY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013
Options Exercise: 61,10¢ 13,12¢ 100,44!
Proceeds (in thousanc $ 13¢  $ 47 % 162
Average exercise price per sh; $ 23C $ 35z $ 1.62

On January 7, 2013, the Company announced thRb#sd of Directors approved a stock repurchaserprogffective January 3, 2013, authorizing
Company to repurchase in the aggregate up to $omibf its outstanding common stock over a tyear period. On March 5, 2015, the Bc
approved a two-year extension of the stock repweieiogram through January 1, 20Ddring the years ended June 30, 2015, 2014 and, 2ba8e
were repurchased as follows:

Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013
Shares repurchasi 29,44¢ 136,44 25,36(
Cash paid for shares repurchased (in thous: $ 126 % 607 $ 74
Average price paid per she $ 43t $ 4.4t $ 2.9z

Total shares repurchased under the program ar@3®%hares at a cost of $0.8 million. As of June2B15, approximately $2.2 million remainec
the Company’s $3.0 million repurchase program. Thenpany purchased all shares with cash resources.

NOTE 7 - STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

The Company sponsors the Sharps Compliance Cotf. tbck Plan (the “2010 Plan”) covering employeesisultants and non-employee directors.
The 2010 Stock Plan replaced the Sharps Compli@oce. 1993 Stock Plan (the “1993 Plan”). The 20fhRProvides for the granting of stoblase!
compensation (stock options or restricted stockymto 3,000,000 shares of the Compangdommon stock of which 1,085,245 options and irtst
shares are outstanding as of June 30, 2015. Omiaméed generally vest over a period of threeoto fyears and expire seven years after the di
grant. Restricted stock generally vests over ore.ye

The 1993 Plan, as amended, provided for the gmmtirstockbased compensation (stock options or restricteckyinf up to 4,000,000 shares of
Companys common stock of which 302,558 shares are outistgrass of June 30, 2015. Options granted genevally over a period of three years
expire seven years after the date of grant. Réstiristock generally vested between one to threesyea

As of June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013, options aMailmo grant under the 2010 Plan are as follows:

2010 Stock
June 30, Plan
2015 1,597,03!
2014 139,26°
2013 296,30¢
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SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 7 - STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

The summary of activity for all stock options dwithe fiscal years ended June 30, 2015, 2014 ah# &0presented in the table below (in thous
except per share amounts):

Weighted

Average

Options Exercise

Outstanding Price

Balance at June 30, 20 1,07¢  $ 4.6
Grantec 17¢ % 2.9C
Exercisec (100) $ 1.62
Forfeited or canceled (280 3 5.82
Balance at June 30, 20 87¢ $ 4.21
Grantec 244 % 3.9t
Exercisec 13 $ 3.5:
Forfeited or canceled (1579) % 3.5(C
Balance at June 30, 20 95C $ 4.27
Grantec 51€ $ 4.6:
Exercisec 61 $ 2.3C
Forfeited or canceled (B0 3 4.6€
Balance at June 30, 20 137% ¢ 4.4¢
Exercisable at June 30, 20 62t ¢ 4.67

The summary of activity for all restricted stockritig the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015, 20142818 is presented in the table below
thousands):

Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013
Unvested at beginning of the ye 15 15 17
Granted 53 62 62
Vested (55) (62) (64)
Unvested at end of the year 13 15 15

The weighted average fair value per share of msttistock granted during the fiscal years endee 30, 2015, 2014 and 201®as $4.28, $4.84 a
$2.48, respectively. The weighted average fair e/gdar share of restricted stock which vested duttiegfiscal years ended June 30, 2015, 201-
2013 was $4.44, $4.25 and $3.01, respectively.
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SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013
NOTE 7 - STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (continued)
The following table summarizes information abowicktoptions outstanding as of June 30, 2015 (inghods except per share amounts):

Options Outstanding

Weighted

Average Weighted

Outstanding Remaining Average

Range of as of Life Exercise

Exercise Price June 30, 201¢ (in Years) Price

$0.00- $2.50 56 03t $ 2.1C
$2.51- $3.50 173 49¢ % 2.97
$3.51- $5.50 93¢ 46C $ 4.32
$5.51- $7.50 11c 6.7: $ 5.7¢
$7.51- $9.50 97 11z $ 8.5(C
137¢ $ 4.4¢

The following table summarizes information abowicg&toptions exercisable as of June 30, 2015 (inghnds except per share amounts):

Options Exercisable

Weighted

Average Weighted

Exercisable Remaining Average

Range of as of Life Exercise

Exercise Price June 30, 2015 (in Years) Price

$0.00- $2.50 56 03t §$ 2.1C
$2.51- $3.50 59 488 % 2.9¢
$3.51- $5.50 414 284 % 4.31
$5.51- $7.50 - - $ -
$7.51- $9.50 96 1.1z $ 8.5(
62< $ 4.6¢

As of June 30, 2015, there was $0.6 million of ktoption and restricted stock compensation expeeis¢ed to norvested awards. This expens
expected to be recognized over a weighted averagedoof 3.0 years.

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating LeasesThe Company leases 119,489 square feet of spadeuston, TexasThe Company recognizes escalating rental paymbatsat

quantifiable at the inception of the lease on aight-line basis over the lease teffhe leases expire from February 2020 to August 2080 option:
to renew the Company’s leases for warehouses yeabs and for office space for 10 years.

Rent expense for the fiscal years ended June 3%, ZD14 and 2013 was $1.3 million, $1.3 milliord&1.2 million, respectively. Future minimi
lease payments under non-cancelable operatingsleasef June 30, 2015 are as follows (in thousands)

Year Ended June 30
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter

Operating lease
obligations $ 74 $ 84€ $ 85z $ 867 $ 814 $ 11z
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SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

The Company amended the corporate office leaseagmat on August 5, 2015, to include an additiond68 square feet of space in Houston, Tex
expand corporate office space effective in Noven#5. The future minimum lease payments for the office space will be an additional $
million, $0.2 million, $0.2 million, $0.2 million$0.2 million and $0.1 million for fiscal years endiJune 30, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019, 202C
thereafter, respectively.

Legal Settlement: On June 30, 2014, the Company entered an agreémsettle its claims against the United States gowent and various agenc
related to the January 2012 termination of the Gamgjs February 2009 contract with the Centers ftseBse Control and Prevention (“CDCThe
settlement agreement resulted in a cash payméit.6fmillion, which was received by the Companyuty 2014.

Other: The Company is also involved in legal proceedingd ktigation in the ordinary course of business.the opinion of management,
outcome of such matters will not have a materigksse effect on the Company’s consolidated findmpmaition or consolidated results of operations.

NOTE 9 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic per share is computed by dividing net incéapéhe weighted average number of common sharesamating during the period. Diluted per st
is computed by dividing net income by the weightegrage number of common shares after considehim@dditional dilution related to comrmr
stock options and restricted stock. In computirigtdd earnings per share, the outstanding comnmk siptions are considered dilutive using
treasury stock method.

The Companys restricted stock awards are treated as outstgridinearning per share calculations since theaeeshhave full voting rights and
entitled to participate in dividends declared omawn shares, if any, and undistributed earningspdsicipating securities, the shares of restr|
stock are included in the calculation of basic EB8g the twoclass method. For the periods presented, the anafuearnings allocated to t
participating securities was not material.

The following information is necessary to calculesenings per share for the periods presentedidiinsands, except per share amounts):

Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013

Net income (loss), as report $ 1,16C $ 95¢ $ (2,712)
Weighted average common shares outstar 15,32} 15,28¢ 15,25¢
Effect of dilutive stock options 237 112 -
Weighted average diluted common shares outstanding 15,56¢ 15,40: 15,25¢
Net income (loss) per common sh

Basic $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ (0.1¢)

Diluted $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.1¢)
Employee stock options excluded from computatiodilited income per share amounts bec

their effect would be ar-dilutive 21C 65E 72¢
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SHARPS COMPLIANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013
NOTE 10 — SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudi ted)

The following tables show quarterly financial infotion for the years ended June 30, 2015 and ZDlid.Company believes that all neces
adjustments have been included in the amounts bi@resent fairly the results of such periodstiimusands expect per share amounts).

Quarter Ended

September 3C December 31 March 31, June 30,
2014 2014 2015 2015
Total revenue $ 7,047 $ 8,69 $ 6,171 $ 8,991
Cost of revenue $ 4,71 $ 5,46t $ 4511 $ 5,21¢
Operating income (los: $ (74) $ 744 $ (80¢) % 1,374
Net income (loss $ (74) $ 74¢  $ 812 $ 1,297
Net income (loss) per she- diluted $ (0.00) $ 0.0t $ (0.05 $ 0.0¢
Weighted average sha-diluted 15,28¢ 15,42% 15,36( 15,80¢
Quarter Ended
September 3C December 31 March 31, June 30,
2013 2013 2014 2014
Total revenue $ 6,272 $ 7,64¢ $ 555 $ 7,09¢
Cost of revenue $ 3,94¢ $ 496( $ 4,14¢ % 4,52¢
Operating income (los: $ 13C % 12C % (93%) $ 1,65(
Net income (loss $ 122 % 12C % (93%) $ 1,64¢
Net income (loss) per she- diluted $ 0.01 $ 0.01 $ (0.06) $ 0.11
Weighted average sha-diluted 15,36¢ 15,43¢ 15,24¢ 15,38!

NOTE 11 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Effective on July 17, 2015, the Company acquirephal Bio/Med Services LLC, a roubesed pickup service located in Pennsylvania, wh@hice
Pennsylvania, Maryland and parts of Ohio for $Qilfion.
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Exhibit 10.29
WAREHOUSE ASSOCIATE

LEASE AMENDMENT #4

This LEASE AMENDMENT #4 (the “Agreement”s made and entered as of August 5, 2015 by andeleet Sharps Compliance, |
(“Tenant”) and Warehouse Associates Corporate €elirby II, Ltd. (“Landlord”) plus Warehouse Associates Corporate Centre KirhyLid.

(“Landlord”).

WITNESSETH:

A. Landlord, or its predecessor in Interest, and Tenamtits predecessor in Interest, have heretoforeredtinto that certain lease de
July 13, 2006 (the “Lease"and for Lease Amendment #1 dated December 12, 20@i7for Lease Amendment #2 dated March 8, 201D fanLeas
Amendment #3 dated February 6, 2015 for 9220 KDbbiwe, Suite 500 containing 18,231 rentableguare feet in the Project known as Corp¢
Centre Kirby I, located at 9220-9230 Kirby Drive, Houston, Texa®)%4 (the “Premises”),

B. The parties mutually desire to amend the &easbject to the terms and conditions hereof.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual teand conditions herein contained, the parties hyeaghee as follows:

1. The parties agree that:

A.

B.

Tenant will lease an additional 9,368 rentable sgdi@et at 9310 Kirby Drive in Warehouse Associdesporate Centre Kirby I’
See attached Exhit“A”. Tenant will be allowed to move into lease spac¢henestablished Effective Date as defined be

The lease term shall be si-three (63) months. The Lease Commencement dateessddommencement date shall be ninety
days from the Effective dat

The Net Monthly Base Rent for this lease spadkeb&: Months 1 — 3 will be $0; Months 463 will be $1.40 per square ft
$13,115.20 per month. In addition to base rent,aféershall also pay $0.39 per square foot $3,658&2month for estimat:
operating expense

The lease expiration for the 9,368 square footesghall be sixi-three (63) months from the Lease Commencement

Landlord will provide a Tenant allowance $44.20 pguare foot ($414,065.60) to be used for constu@s outlined in the attact
bid dated July 28, 2015 from Horizon Builders (a¢tached Exhibit “B”)in the amount of $441,685. Tenant shall be respim$or
the cost difference in this bid of $27,620 aboweTenant allowance. Tenants construction plantiéned in Exhibit“C”

Tenant shall have the right to terminate the leaséhe 9,368 square foot space at the point attwh@énnant enters into a new le
for approximately 21,307 square feet at 9220 Kithive, Suite 100 (currently occupied by Harris CguRublic Library). The ba:
rental rate for this space will be $1.25 per sqiieoé plus operating expenses. There will not lga@in rent payments from the 9,.
sf space to the 21,307 sf space. This space wilvbédableas early as December 31, 2016 and as late as JROAT.

In the event that Tenant leases the 21,307 sf spaeeent will commence immediately on the dagraéither expiration date for t
Harris County Public Library as listed in paragrdph above, or the date at which they vacate the prengiad the premises are
acceptable condition for occupancy by Tenant. Th8Q sf space will be leased*AS-IS” condition.




WAREHOUSE ASSOCIATE

2. Effective Date. The Effective Date will be the latd November 15", 2015 or upon receipt of the Temporary Certificaft€ccupanc
and the acceptance of the buildout in accordantietive agreed upon specifications. (herein refetwess the “Effective Date”).

3.  Whole Agreement. This Agreement sets forth theremtgreement between the parties with respectetonéitters set forth herein. Th
have been no additional oral or written represériator agreements. As amended herein, the Ledaedre the parties shall remain in full force
effect. In case of any inconsistency between togigions of the Lease and this Agreement, therlattavisions shall govern and control.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executedAlgieement as of the date first above written.

LANDLORD: Warehouse Associates Corporate Centre Kirby I,
Warehouse Associates Corporate Centre Kirby IV,

By:  /s/ David R. Davic

Name: David R. David

Its:  Authorized Agen
TENANT: Sharps Compliance, Ir
By: /s/ Diana P. Dia.

Name: Diana P. Dia:

Its: Vice President and Chief Financial Offic




Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Name Jurisdiction of Incorporatio
Sharps Compliance, Inc. of Texas (dba Sharps Camg#i, Inc.’ Texas

Sharps -Tools.com, Inc Delaware

Sharps Safety, In Texas

Sharps Manufacturing, In Delaware

Sharps Environmental Services, Inc. (dba Sharpgr@émwental Services of Texas, In  Delaware

Alpha Bio/Med Services LLC Pennsylvani:

*Added July 17, 2015 as a subsidiary of Sharps Gamgpe, Inc. of Texas




Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

Sharps Compliance Corp.
Houston, Texas

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéntbe Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Redish Nos. 333-155638, 333-200544 and 333-
170765) of Sharps Compliance Corp. of our repotedl&ugust 26, 2015, relating to the 2015 constdiddinancial statements, which appears in
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Houston, Texas
August 26, 2015




Exhibit 23.2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéndbe Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Fibs.NB33-155638, 333-200544 and 333765
of Sharps Compliance Corp. of our report dated Au@d, 2014, with respect to the consolidated firrstatements of Sharps Compliance Corp
subsidiaries as of June 30, 2014, and for eacheofvto fiscal years in the period ended June 304 2®&hich appears in this Annual Report on F
10-K for the year ended June 30, 2014.
/s/ UHY LLP

Farmington Hills, Michigan
August 26, 2015




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER IN ACCORDA NCE WITH SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT
I, David P. Tusa, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Sharps Compliance Cor

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of material fact or omittédesa material fact necessary to maki
statements made, in light of the circumstances umtiich such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$,adiner financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respe
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this repo

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contewld procedures (as definec
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) aretriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13E5(f) anc
15c¢-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedunesaosed such disclosure controls and procedurdse tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ibsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrife period in which this report is being prepa

b. Designed such internal control over financial reéipgy;, or caused such internal control over finah@porting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangarding the reliability of financial reporting anttle preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presantad report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the temig's internal control over financial reportingat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registranfburth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regist’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxhon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financial reporting,
the registrar's auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controtiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpranhcial information; ani

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarst’
internal control over financial reportin

Date: August 26, 201 By: /s/ DAVID P. TUSA
David P. Tus

Chief Executive Officer and Presid:

(Principal Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER IN ACCORDA NCE WITH SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT
I, Diana P. Diaz, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Sharps Compliance Cor

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of material fact or omittédesa material fact necessary to maki
statements made, in light of the circumstances umtiich such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$,adiner financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respe
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this repo

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contewld procedures (as definec
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) aretriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13E5(f) anc
15c¢-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedunesaosed such disclosure controls and procedurdse tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ibsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrife period in which this report is being prepa

b. Designed such internal control over financial reéipgy;, or caused such internal control over finah@porting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangarding the reliability of financial reporting anttle preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presantad report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the temig's internal control over financial reportingat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registranfburth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regist’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxhon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financial reporting,
the registrar's auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controtiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpranhcial information; ani

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarst’
internal control over financial reportin

Date: August 26, 201 By: /s/ DIANA P. DIAZ
Diana P. Dia

Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

(Principal Financial and Accounting Offic




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER IN ACCORDA NCE WITH SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY
ACT

In conjunction with the annual report of Sharps @bamce Corp. (the “Company”) on Form ¥Ofor the year ended June 30, 2015, as filed
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the hierieof, |, David P. Tusa, Chief Executive OfficeldaPresident of the Company, cert
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipntso Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act @220 the best of my knowledge that:

(1) The Form 1K report for the year ended June 30, 2015, filethwhe Securities and Exchange Commission on Aug@is201!
fully complies with the requirements of Section(a}or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Adt384; anc

(2) The information contained in the Form KOreport for the year ended June 30, 2015 fairlgspnts, in all material respects,
financial condition and results of operations c&fis Compliance Cor

Date: August 26, 201 By: /s/ DAVID P. TUSA
David P. Tus

Chief Executive Officer and Presid:

(Principal Executive Office




Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER IN ACCORDA NCE WITH SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT

In conjunction with the annual report of Sharps @bamce Corp. (the “Company”) on Form X0for the year ended June 30, 2015, as filed
the Securities and Exchange Commission on therdatof, |, Diana P. Diaz, Vice President and CRiefincial Officer of the Company, certi
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipntso Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act @220 the best of my knowledge that:

(1) The Form 1 report for the year ended June 30, 2015, filethwhe Securities and Exchange Commission on AugBisP01E
fully complies with the requirements of Section(a}or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Ad384; anc

(2) The information contained in the Form-K report for the year ended June 30, 2015 fairlyspnts, in all material respects,
financial condition and results of operations o&&§is Compliance Cor

Date: August 26, 201 By: /s/ DIANA P. DIAZ
Diana P. Dia

Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

(Principal Financial and Accounting Offic




